
Monday, January 11, 2021 AGENDA Page 1 

BERKELEY CITY COUNCIL AGENDA & RULES COMMITTEE 
SPECIAL MEETING 

MONDAY, JANUARY 11, 2021 
2:30 P.M. 

Committee Members:  
Mayor Jesse Arreguin, Councilmembers Sophie Hahn and Susan Wengraf 

Alternate: Councilmember Lori Droste 

PUBLIC ADVISORY:  THIS MEETING WILL BE CONDUCTED EXCLUSIVELY THROUGH 
VIDEOCONFERENCE AND TELECONFERENCE  

Pursuant to Section 3 of Executive Order N-29-20, issued by Governor Newsom on March 17, 
2020, this meeting of the City Council Agenda & Rules Committee will be conducted exclusively 
through teleconference and Zoom videoconference.  Please be advised that pursuant to the 
Executive Order, and to ensure the health and safety of the public by limiting human contact that 
could spread the COVID-19 virus, there will not be a physical meeting location available.   

To access the meeting remotely using the internet: Join from a PC, Mac, iPad, iPhone, or Android 
device: Use URL https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88332004696.  If you do not wish for your name to 
appear on the screen, then use the drop down menu and click on "rename" to rename yourself to 
be anonymous. To request to speak, use the “raise hand” icon on the screen. 

To join by phone: Dial 1-669-900-9128 or 1-877-853-5257 (Toll Free) and Enter Meeting ID: 883 
3200 4696.  If you wish to comment during the public comment portion of the agenda, press *9 
and wait to be recognized by the Chair.  

Written communications submitted by mail or e-mail to the Agenda & Rules Committee by 5:00 
p.m. the Friday before the Committee meeting will be distributed to the members of the Committee
in advance of the meeting and retained as part of the official record.  City offices are currently
closed and cannot accept written communications in person.

1

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88332004696


 
Monday, January 11, 2021 AGENDA Page 2 

AGENDA 
 

Roll Call 

Public Comment 
 
Review of Agendas 

1. Approval of Minutes: January 4, 2021 

2. Review and Approve Draft Agenda: 
a. 1/26/21 – 6:00 p.m. Regular City Council Meeting 

3. Selection of Item for the Berkeley Considers Online Engagement Portal 

4. Adjournments In Memory 
 

Scheduling 

5. Council Worksessions Schedule 

6. Council Referrals to Agenda Committee for Scheduling 

7. Land Use Calendar 
 

Referred Items for Review 
 

8. Discussion Regarding Impact of COVID-19 (novel coronavirus) on Meetings 
of Legislative Bodies 

  
 

2



Referred Items for Review 
 

 
Monday, January 11, 2021 AGENDA Page 3 

9. Support Affirming the Right to Boycott as a Tactic for Social and Political 
Change 
From: Councilmember Davila (Author) 
Referred: November 30, 2020 
Due: May 23, 2021 
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution with the following actions: 1. Support 
Affirming the Right to Boycott as a Tactic for Social and Political Change, and 
celebrate the People of Berkeley for their commitment to Peace, Justice and 
Equity; 2. The City of Berkeley affirms the right of all people to participate in 
boycotts of any entity when they have conscientious concerns with the entity’s 
policies or actions; 3. The City of Berkeley condemns attempts by governments to 
infringe upon the right to peaceful boycotts by criminalizing that participation, 
denying participants state contracts, or otherwise impeding the freedom of 
advocacy for all; 4. The City Council encourages City Commissions to 
recommend boycott policies to the City Council when appropriate, so that the City 
Council may be well informed in its oversight of City resources 5. Send a copy of 
this resolution to Governor Gavin Newsom, Attorney General Xavier Becerra, 
State Assemblymember Buffy Wicks, State Senator Nancy Skinner, United States 
Senators Bernie Sanders, Kamala Harris, Dianne Feinstein, and United States 
Congressional Representatives Barbara Lee, Ro Khanna, Alexandria Ocasio-
Cortez, Ilhan Omar, Ayanna Pressley, Rashida Harbi Tlaib, and Pramila Jayapal.  
Financial Implications: None 
Contact: Cheryl Davila, Councilmember, District 2, (510) 981-7120 

 

Unscheduled Items 
These items are not scheduled for discussion or action at this meeting.  The Committee may schedule 
these items to the Action Calendar of a future Committee meeting. 
 

10. Amendments to the Berkeley Election Reform Act to prohibit Officeholder 
Accounts; Amending BMC Chapter 2.12 (Item contains supplemental material) 
From: Fair Campaign Practices Commission 
Referred: July 28, 2020 
Due: January 29, 2021 
Recommendation: Conduct a public hearing and upon conclusion, adopt first 
reading of an ordinance amending the Berkeley Election Reform Act, Berkeley 
Municipal Code Chapter 2.12, to prohibit Officeholder Accounts (See Section 
18531.62. Elected State Officeholder Bank Accounts, Regulations of the Fair 
Political Practices Commission).   
Financial Implications: None 
Contact: Sam Harvey, Commission Secretary, (510) 981-6950 

  

3



 

 
Monday, January 11, 2021 AGENDA Page 4 

Unscheduled Items 
 

11. Relinquishments and grants from Councilmembers’ office budgets 
From: Open Government Commission 
Referred: August 31, 2020 
Due: February 15, 2021 
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution creating a temporary advisory committee 
consisting of three (3) members each of the City Council and the Open 
Government Commission (“OGC”) to enable discussion between the Council and 
the OGC to make recommendations governing relinquishments and grants from 
Councilmembers’ office budgets.  
Financial Implications: None 
Contact: Sam Harvey, Commission Secretary, (510) 981-6950 
 

12. Commission Reorganization for Post-COVID19 Budget Recovery 
From: Councilmember Droste (Author), Councilmember Robinson (Co-
Sponsor), Councilmember Kesarwani (Co-Sponsor) 
Referred: June 15, 2020 
Due: March 1, 2021 
Recommendation: 1. Reorganize existing commissions with the goal of 
achieving 20 total commissions; 2. Reorganize existing commissions within 
various departments to ensure that no single department is responsible for more 
than five commissions; 3. Reorganize commissions within the Public Works 
Department to ensure Public Works oversees no more than three commissions; 
4. Refer to the City Manager and every policy committee to agendize at the next 
meeting available to discuss commissions that are in their purview and make 
recommendations to the full Council on how to reorganize and address the 
various policy areas. Commission members should be notified and chairs should 
be invited to participate. Policy committee members are encouraged to consider 
the renaming of some commissions in order to ensure that all policy areas are 
addressed.  
Financial Implications: See report 
Contact: Lori Droste, Councilmember, District 8, (510) 981-7180 

 

Items for Future Agendas 

 Discussion of items to be added to future agendas 

 
Adjournment – Next Meeting Monday, January 25, 2021 

 
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 
 
Additional items may be added to the draft agenda per Council Rules of 
Procedure. 
 

4



 

 
Monday, January 11, 2021 AGENDA Page 5 

Rules of Procedure as adopted by Council resolution, Article III, C3c - Agenda - Submission of Time Critical 
Items 

Time Critical Items.  A Time Critical item is defined as a matter that is considered urgent by the sponsor 
and that has a deadline for action that is prior to the next meeting of the Council and for which a report 
prepared by the City Manager, Auditor, Mayor or council member is received by the City Clerk after 
established deadlines and is not included on the Agenda Committee’s published agenda.   

If the Agenda Committee finds the matter to meet the definition of Time Critical, the Agenda Committee 
may place the matter on the Agenda on either the Consent or Action Calendar.  

The City Clerk shall not accept any item past the adjournment of the Agenda Committee meeting for which 
the agenda that the item is requested to appear on has been approved. 

Written communications addressed to the Agenda Committee and submitted to the City Clerk Department 
by 5:00 p.m. the Friday before the Committee meeting, will be distributed to the Committee prior to the 
meeting.   

This meeting will be conducted in accordance with the Brown Act, Government Code Section 54953 and 
applicable Executive Orders as issued by the Governor that are currently in effect.  Members of the City 
Council who are not members of the standing committee may attend a standing committee meeting even 
if it results in a quorum being present, provided that the non-members only act as observers and do not 
participate in the meeting. If only one member of the Council who is not a member of the committee is 
present for the meeting, the member may participate in the meeting because less than a quorum of the 
full Council is present. Any member of the public may attend this meeting.  Questions regarding this 
matter may be addressed to Mark Numainville, City Clerk, (510) 981-6900. 
 

COMMUNICATION ACCESS INFORMATION: 
To request a disability-related accommodation(s) to participate in the meeting, including 
auxiliary aids or services, please contact the Disability Services specialist at (510) 981-6418 
(V) or (510) 981-6347 (TDD) at least three business days before the meeting date.  

* * * 
I hereby certify that the agenda for this special meeting of the Berkeley City Council was posted at the 
display case located near the walkway in front of the Maudelle Shirek Building, 2134 Martin Luther King 
Jr. Way, as well as on the City’s website, on January 7, 2020. 

 
Mark Numainville, City Clerk 
 
 
Communications 
Communications submitted to City Council Policy Committees are on file in the City Clerk Department at 
2180 Milvia Street, 1st Floor, Berkeley, CA, and are available upon request by contacting the City Clerk 
Department at (510) 981-6908 or policycommittee@cityofberkeley.info. 

5

mailto:policycommittee@cityofberkeley.info


6



 
Monday, January 4, 2021 MINUTES Page 1 

BERKELEY CITY COUNCIL AGENDA & RULES COMMITTEE 
SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES 

MONDAY, JANUARY 4, 2021 
2:30 P.M. 

Committee Members:  
Mayor Jesse Arreguin, Councilmembers Sophie Hahn and Susan Wengraf 

Alternate: Councilmember Lori Droste 
 

PUBLIC ADVISORY:  THIS MEETING WILL BE CONDUCTED EXCLUSIVELY THROUGH 
VIDEOCONFERENCE AND TELECONFERENCE  
 
Pursuant to Section 3 of Executive Order N-29-20, issued by Governor Newsom on March 17, 
2020, this meeting of the City Council Agenda & Rules Committee will be conducted exclusively 
through teleconference and Zoom videoconference.  Please be advised that pursuant to the 
Executive Order, and to ensure the health and safety of the public by limiting human contact that 
could spread the COVID-19 virus, there will not be a physical meeting location available.   
 
To access the meeting remotely using the internet: Join from a PC, Mac, iPad, iPhone, or Android 
device: Use URL https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84969006215.  If you do not wish for your name to 
appear on the screen, then use the drop down menu and click on "rename" to rename yourself to 
be anonymous. To request to speak, use the “raise hand” icon on the screen. 
 
To join by phone: Dial 1-669-900-9128 or 1-877-853-5257 (Toll Free) and Enter Meeting ID: 849 
6900 6215.  If you wish to comment during the public comment portion of the agenda, press *9 
and wait to be recognized by the Chair.  
 
Written communications submitted by mail or e-mail to the Agenda & Rules Committee by 5:00 
p.m. the Friday before the Committee meeting will be distributed to the members of the Committee 
in advance of the meeting and retained as part of the official record.  City offices are currently 
closed and cannot accept written communications in person. 
 

 

  

7

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84969006215
rthomsen
Typewritten Text
01



 
Monday, January 4, 2021 MINUTES Page 2 

 
Roll Call: 2:32 p.m. All present. 

Public Comment – 7 speakers 
 
Review of Agendas 

1. Approval of Minutes: November 30, 2020 
Action: M/S/C (Wengraf/Hahn) to approve the Minutes of 11/30/2020. 

 Vote: All Ayes. 

2. Review and Approve Draft Agenda: 
a. 1/19/21 – 6:00 p.m. Regular City Council Meeting 

Action: M/S/C (Wengraf/Hahn) to approve the 1/19/21 Agenda with the 
revisions noted below. 
 Item Added: Labor MOU (City Manager) – Added to Consent Calendar 
 Item Added: AB15 and AB16 (Robinson) – Added to Consent Calendar; Councilmembers 

Harrison and Taplin added as co-sponsors 
 Item 16 Sale of Vehicles (Davila) – Moved to Action Calendar 
 Item 18 Lobbyist Ordinance (OGC) – Moved to Consent Calendar 
 Item 20 Task Force (Arreguin) – Revised item submitted; moved to Consent Calendar 
 Item 21 Honor Black Panther Party (Taplin) – Revised item submitted; Mayor Arreguin 

and Councilmember Bartlett added as co-sponsors; scheduled for 1/19 Consent 
Calendar 

 Item 22 Grocery Store Workers (Taplin) (Taplin) – Revised item submitted; Mayor 
Arreguin and Councilmember Bartlett added as co-sponsors; scheduled for 1/19 Action 
Calendar 

 Item 23 Child Care Providers (Hahn) – Councilmembers Harrison and Wengraf and 
Mayor Arreguin added as co-sponsors; scheduled for 1/19 Consent Calendar 

 Item 24 Parklets and Sidewalk Seating (Hahn) – Councilmembers Harrison and Bartlett 
added as co-sponsors; scheduled for 1/19 Action Calendar 

 Item 25 Roe v. Wade (Wengraf) – Scheduled for 1/19 Consent Calendar 
 

Order of Action Items 
Item 16 Sale of Vehicles 
Item 17 Proposition 12 Implementation 
Item 19 Racism as a Public Health Crisis 
Item 22 Grocery Store Workers 
Item 24 Parklets and Sidewalk Seating 

 
Vote: All Ayes. 

3. Selection of Item for the Berkeley Considers Online Engagement Portal 
- None selected 

4. Adjournments In Memory 
- Tom Guarino, PG&E Governmental Affairs Representative 
- Harry Brill, Labor Activist 
- Ted Edlin, City Commissioner 

 

8



 
Monday, January 4, 2021 MINUTES Page 3 

Scheduling 

5. Council Worksessions Schedule 
- Homeless Outreach item added to 2/16/21 

6. Council Referrals to Agenda Committee for Scheduling 
 
Action: M/S/C (Arreguin/Wengraf) to schedule #3 Report on Homeless Outreach 
for February 16 Worksession agenda. 

 Vote: All Ayes. 
 

Action: M/S/C (Arreguin/Hahn) to schedule #4 Police Chief for February 9 Action 
Calendar. 

 Vote: All Ayes. 

7. Land Use Calendar – received and filed 
 

Referred Items for Review 
 

8. Discussion Regarding Impact of COVID-19 (novel coronavirus) on Meetings 
of Legislative Bodies 
 
Action: 4 speakers. Discussion held. No action taken. 
 

9



Referred Items for Review 
 

 
Monday, January 4, 2021 MINUTES Page 4 

9. Commission Reorganization for Post-COVID19 Budget Recovery 
From: Councilmember Droste (Author), Councilmember Robinson (Co-
Sponsor), Councilmember Kesarwani (Co-Sponsor) 
Referred: June 15, 2020 
Due: March 1, 2021 
Recommendation: 1. Reorganize existing commissions with the goal of 
achieving 20 total commissions; 2. Reorganize existing commissions within 
various departments to ensure that no single department is responsible for more 
than five commissions; 3. Reorganize commissions within the Public Works 
Department to ensure Public Works oversees no more than three commissions; 
4. Refer to the City Manager and every policy committee to agendize at the next 
meeting available to discuss commissions that are in their purview and make 
recommendations to the full Council on how to reorganize and address the 
various policy areas. Commission members should be notified and chairs should 
be invited to participate. Policy committee members are encouraged to consider 
the renaming of some commissions in order to ensure that all policy areas are 
addressed.  
Financial Implications: See report 
Contact: Lori Droste, Councilmember, District 8, (510) 981-7180 
 

Action: 3 speakers. Discussion held. Item moved to Unscheduled Items for the 
January 11 agenda. Mayor Arreguin will call a special meeting of the committee to 
hear this item. 

 

10



Referred Items for Review 
 

 
Monday, January 4, 2021 MINUTES Page 5 

10. Support Affirming the Right to Boycott as a Tactic for Social and Political 
Change 
From: Councilmember Davila (Author) 
Referred: November 30, 2020 
Due: May 23, 2021 
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution with the following actions: 1. Support 
Affirming the Right to Boycott as a Tactic for Social and Political Change, and 
celebrate the People of Berkeley for their commitment to Peace, Justice and 
Equity; 2. The City of Berkeley affirms the right of all people to participate in 
boycotts of any entity when they have conscientious concerns with the entity’s 
policies or actions; 3. The City of Berkeley condemns attempts by governments to 
infringe upon the right to peaceful boycotts by criminalizing that participation, 
denying participants state contracts, or otherwise impeding the freedom of 
advocacy for all; 4. The City Council encourages City Commissions to 
recommend boycott policies to the City Council when appropriate, so that the City 
Council may be well informed in its oversight of City resources 5. Send a copy of 
this resolution to Governor Gavin Newsom, Attorney General Xavier Becerra, 
State Assemblymember Buffy Wicks, State Senator Nancy Skinner, United States 
Senators Bernie Sanders, Kamala Harris, Dianne Feinstein, and United States 
Congressional Representatives Barbara Lee, Ro Khanna, Alexandria Ocasio-
Cortez, Ilhan Omar, Ayanna Pressley, Rashida Harbi Tlaib, and Pramila Jayapal.  
Financial Implications: None 
Contact: Cheryl Davila, Councilmember, District 2, (510) 981-7120 

 

Action: No action taken.  Held over to January 11 agenda. 
 

 

Unscheduled Items 
These items are not scheduled for discussion or action at this meeting.  The Committee may schedule 
these items to the Action Calendar of a future Committee meeting. 
 

11. Amendments to the Berkeley Election Reform Act to prohibit Officeholder 
Accounts; Amending BMC Chapter 2.12 (Item contains supplemental material) 
From: Fair Campaign Practices Commission 
Referred: July 28, 2020 
Due: January 29, 2021 
Recommendation: Conduct a public hearing and upon conclusion, adopt first 
reading of an ordinance amending the Berkeley Election Reform Act, Berkeley 
Municipal Code Chapter 2.12, to prohibit Officeholder Accounts (See Section 
18531.62. Elected State Officeholder Bank Accounts, Regulations of the Fair 
Political Practices Commission).   
Financial Implications: None 
Contact: Sam Harvey, Commission Secretary, (510) 981-6950 
 
Action: No action taken.   
 
 

 

11



 

 
Monday, January 4, 2021 MINUTES Page 6 

12. Relinquishments and grants from Councilmembers’ office budgets 
From: Open Government Commission 
Referred: August 31, 2020 
Due: February 15, 2021 
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution creating a temporary advisory committee 
consisting of three (3) members each of the City Council and the Open 
Government Commission (“OGC”) to enable discussion between the Council and 
the OGC to make recommendations governing relinquishments and grants from 
Councilmembers’ office budgets.  
Financial Implications: None 
Contact: Sam Harvey, Commission Secretary, (510) 981-6950 
 
Action: No action taken.   

 
 

 

Items for Future Agendas 

 None

 
Adjournment  

 
Action: M/S/C (Wengraf/Arreguin) to adjourn the meeting. 

 Vote: All Ayes. 
 
  Adjourned at 4:50 p.m. 

 
 
I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct record of the Agenda & Rules 
Committee meeting held on January 4, 2021. 
 
______________________ 
Mark Numainville 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
Communications 
Communications submitted to City Council Policy Committees are on file in the City Clerk Department at 
2180 Milvia Street, 1st Floor, Berkeley, CA, and are available upon request by contacting the City Clerk 
Department at (510) 981-6908 or policycommittee@cityofberkeley.info. 

12

mailto:policycommittee@cityofberkeley.info


 

Tuesday, January 26, 2021 DRAFT AGENDA Page 1 

D R AF T  AG E N D A  

 
BERKELEY CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

Tuesday, January 26, 2021 
6:00 PM 

 

JESSE ARREGUIN, MAYOR 
Councilmembers: 

DISTRICT 1 – RASHI KESARWANI  DISTRICT 5 – SOPHIE HAHN 
DISTRICT 2 – TERRY TAPLIN  DISTRICT 6 – SUSAN WENGRAF 
DISTRICT 3 – BEN BARTLETT  DISTRICT 7 – RIGEL ROBINSON 
DISTRICT 4 – KATE HARRISON  DISTRICT 8 – LORI DROSTE 

 
PUBLIC ADVISORY:  THIS MEETING WILL BE CONDUCTED EXCLUSIVELY THROUGH 
VIDEOCONFERENCE AND TELECONFERENCE  
Pursuant to Section 3 of Executive Order N-29-20, issued by Governor Newsom on March 17, 2020, this meeting 
of the City Council will be conducted exclusively through teleconference and Zoom videoconference.  Please be 
advised that pursuant to the Executive Order and the Shelter-in-Place Order, and to ensure the health and safety 
of the public by limiting human contact that could spread the COVID-19 virus, there will not be a physical meeting 
location available.   
 
Live audio is available on KPFB Radio 89.3. Live captioned broadcasts of Council Meetings are available on 
Cable B-TV (Channel 33) and via internet accessible video stream at 
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/CalendarEventWebcastMain.aspx. 
 
To access the meeting remotely: Join from a PC, Mac, iPad, iPhone, or Android device:  Please use this URL 
<<INSERT URL HERE>>.  If you do not wish for your name to appear on the screen, then use the drop down 
menu and click on "rename" to rename yourself to be anonymous.  To request to speak, use the “raise hand” icon 
by rolling over the bottom of the screen.  
 
To join by phone: Dial 1-669-900-9128 or 1-877-853-5257 (Toll Free) and enter Meeting ID: <<INSERT 
MEETING ID HERE>>. If you wish to comment during the public comment portion of the agenda, Press *9 and 
wait to be recognized by the Chair.  
 
To submit an e-mail comment during the meeting to be read aloud during public comment, email 
clerk@cityofberkeley.info with the Subject Line in this format: “PUBLIC COMMENT ITEM ##.” Please observe a 
150 word limit. Time limits on public comments will apply. Written comments will be entered into the public record.   
 
Please be mindful that the teleconference will be recorded as any Council meeting is recorded, and all other rules 
of procedure and decorum will apply for Council meetings conducted by teleconference or videoconference. 
 
This meeting will be conducted in accordance with the Brown Act, Government Code Section 54953.  Any 
member of the public may attend this meeting.  Questions regarding this matter may be addressed to Mark 
Numainville, City Clerk, (510) 981-6900. The City Council may take action related to any subject listed on the 
Agenda. Meetings will adjourn at 11:00 p.m. - any items outstanding at that time will be carried over to a date/time 
to be specified. 

13

http://www.cityofberkeley.info/CalendarEventWebcastMain.aspx
mailto:clerk@cityofberkeley.info
rthomsen
Typewritten Text
02a



 

Tuesday, January 26, 2021 DRAFT AGENDA Page 2 

Preliminary Matters 

Roll Call:  

Ceremonial Matters: In addition to those items listed on the agenda, the Mayor may add additional 
ceremonial matters. 

City Manager Comments:  The City Manager may make announcements or provide information to 
the City Council in the form of an oral report.  The Council will not take action on such items but may 
request the City Manager place a report on a future agenda for discussion. 

Public Comment on Non-Agenda Matters: Persons will be selected to address matters not on 
the Council agenda.  If five or fewer persons wish to speak, each person selected will be allotted two 
minutes each.  If more than five persons wish to speak, up to ten persons will be selected to address 
matters not on the Council agenda and each person selected will be allotted one minute each. The 
remainder of the speakers wishing to address the Council on non-agenda items will be heard at the end 
of the agenda. 

 
Consent Calendar 
 The Council will first determine whether to move items on the agenda for “Action” or “Information” to the 

“Consent Calendar”, or move “Consent Calendar” items to “Action.” Three members of the City Council 
must agree to pull an item from the Consent Calendar for it to move to Action. Items that remain on the 
“Consent Calendar” are voted on in one motion as a group. “Information” items are not discussed or acted 
upon at the Council meeting unless they are moved to “Action” or “Consent”. 

No additional items can be moved onto the Consent Calendar once public comment has commenced. At 
any time during, or immediately after, public comment on Information and Consent items, any 
Councilmember may move any Information or Consent item to “Action.” Following this, the Council will 
vote on the items remaining on the Consent Calendar in one motion.  

For items moved to the Action Calendar from the Consent Calendar or Information Calendar, persons 
who spoke on the item during the Consent Calendar public comment period may speak again at the time 
the matter is taken up during the Action Calendar. 

Public Comment on Consent Calendar and Information Items Only: The Council will 
take public comment on any items that are either on the amended Consent Calendar or the Information 
Calendar.  Speakers will be entitled to two minutes each to speak in opposition to or support of Consent 
Calendar and Information Items.  A speaker may only speak once during the period for public comment 
on Consent Calendar and Information items. 

Additional information regarding public comment by City of Berkeley employees and interns: Employees 
and interns of the City of Berkeley, although not required, are encouraged to identify themselves as such, 
the department in which they work and state whether they are speaking as an individual or in their official 
capacity when addressing the Council in open session or workshops. 
 

 
 

 

14



Consent Calendar 

Tuesday, January 26, 2021 DRAFT AGENDA Page 3 

1. 
 

Contract No. 32000129 Amendment: Resource Development Associates for 
Planning and Project Coordination Services 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager or her 
designee to execute an amendment to Contract No. 32000129 with Resource 
Development Associates through January 31, 2022, adding $49,000 for a total not to 
exceed amount of $97,850, to fund Mental Health Services Act (MHSA) Innovations 
(INN) Planning and “Help@Hand” Technology Suite Project Coordination services.  
Financial Implications: See report 
Contact: Lisa Warhuus, Health, Housing, and Community Services, (510) 981-5400 

 

2. 
 

Contract No. 32000106 Amendment: Easy Does It for Provision of Wheelchair 
Van Service for Seniors & Disabled 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager or her 
designee to execute an amendment to Contract No. 32000106 with Easy Does It in 
an amount not to exceed $150,000 for the period April 1, 2021 through June 30, 
2023 for the provision of accessible wheelchair van services to clients of the Aging 
Services Division’s Berkeley Rides for Seniors & the Disabled program.  
Financial Implications: See report 
Contact: Lisa Warhuus, Health, Housing, and Community Services, (510) 981-5400 

 

3. 
 

Resolution Accepting the Surveillance Technology Report for Automatic 
License Plate Readers, GPS Trackers, Body Worn Cameras, and the Street 
Level Imagery Project Pursuant to Chapter 2.99 of the Berkeley Municipal Code 
(Continued from November 10, 2020) (Note: On November 16, 2020, the Agenda & 
Rules Committee scheduled this item for the December 1, 2020 Council meeting 
agenda.  The item was unintentionally omitted from the December 1, 2020 agenda, 
and is now being included on the next available regular meeting agenda.) 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution accepting the Surveillance Technology 
Report for Automatic License Plate Readers, GPS Trackers, Body Worn Cameras, 
and the Street Level Imagery Project Pursuant to Chapter 2.99 of the Berkeley 
Municipal Code 
Financial Implications: None  
Contact: Andrew Greenwood, Police, (510) 981-5900, Savita Chaudhary, Director of 
Information Technology (510) 981-6541, Dave White, City Manager's Office, (510) 
981-7000 

 

15



Consent Calendar 

Tuesday, January 26, 2021 DRAFT AGENDA Page 4 

4. 
 

Contract: Sposeto Engineering Inc. for Central Berkeley Transportation & 
Infrastructure Improvements Project 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution: 1. Approving plans and specifications for the 
Central Berkeley Transportation & Infrastructure Improvements Project, (“Project”), 
Specification Nos. 21-11411-C, 21-11416-C, and 21-11417-C; 2. Accepting the bid of 
Sposeto Engineering Inc., the lowest responsive and responsible bidder; and 3. 
Authorizing the City Manager to execute a contract with Sposeto Engineering Inc. 
and any amendments, extensions, and/or change orders until completion of the 
Project in accordance with the approved plans and specifications, in an amount not 
to exceed $3,477,475, which includes a contingency of fourteen percent for 
unforeseen circumstances.  
Financial Implications: See report 
Contact: Liam Garland, Public Works, (510) 981-6300 

 

5. 
 

Contract: Cratus, Inc. for Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation at Various Locations 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution approving plans and specifications for the 
Sanitary Sewer Project, located on Cedar Street, Virginia Gardens, Sacramento 
Street, Lincoln Street, Spaulding Avenue Backline, Roosevelt Avenue Backline, 
Martin Luther King Jr. Way and Backline, Walker Street Backline, Telegraph Avenue 
Backline, Atherton Street, Fulton Street, Bancroft Way, Shattuck Avenue, and 
Kittredge Street; accepting the bid of the lowest responsive and responsible bidder, 
Cratus, Inc.; and authorizing the City Manager to execute a contract and any 
amendments, extensions, or other change orders until completion of the project in 
accordance with the approved plans and specifications, in an amount not to exceed 
$2,074,469, which includes a 10% contingency of $188,588.  
Financial Implications: See report 
Contact: Liam Garland, Public Works, (510) 981-6300 

 

6. 
 

Contract: Toole Design Group for Planning, Design, and Engineering of the 
Southside Complete Streets Project 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute a 
contract and any amendments with Toole Design Group for Planning, Design, and 
Engineering of the Southside Complete Streets Project, for a not-to-exceed amount 
of $979,349 for the period February 1, 2021 through March 31, 2024.  
Financial Implications: See report 
Contact: Liam Garland, Public Works, (510) 981-6300 

 

16



Consent Calendar 

Tuesday, January 26, 2021 DRAFT AGENDA Page 5 

7. 
 

Approval of Berkeley Strategic Transportation Plan Second Addendum 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution: 1. Approving the Berkeley Strategic 
Transportation Plan Second Addendum. 2. Authorizing the City Manager to submit 
unfunded Five-Year Priority Projects from the Berkeley Strategic Transportation Plan 
Second Addendum to the Alameda County Transportation Commission for inclusion 
and funding in the County’s Fiscal Year (FY) 2022 – FY 2026 Comprehensive 
Investment Plan. 3. Authorizing the City Manager to execute agreements as needed 
for accepting the awarded grant funds.  
Financial Implications: See report 
Contact: Liam Garland, Public Works, (510) 981-6300 

 

8. 
 

Opposition of New U.S. Base Construction in the Henoko-Oura Bay of Okinawa 
From: Peace and Justice Commission 
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution opposing new U.S. base construction in the 
Hemoko-Oura Bay of Okinawa.  
Financial Implications: Minimal 
Contact: Paul Buddenhagen, City Manager's Office, (510) 981-7000 

 

9. 
 

Public Works Commission Recommendation for the Five-Year Paving Plan 
From: Public Works Commission 
Recommendation: Adopt a resolution that recommends approval of the first three 
years of the Five-Year Paving Plan, for FY2021 to FY2025, as proposed by Staff, 
with special advisories regarding prioritization of permeable paving on select streets.  
Financial Implications: See report. 
Contact: Joe Enke, Commission Secretary, (510) 981-6300 

 

Council Consent Items 
 

10. 
 

Budget Referral to Reinstate Partial Funding for the Gun Buyback  
Program Previously Authorized by City Council (Continued from November 10, 
2020) (Note: On November 16, 2020, the Agenda & Rules Committee scheduled this 
item for the December 1, 2020 Council meeting agenda.  The item was 
unintentionally omitted from the December 1, 2020 agenda, and is now being 
included on the next available regular meeting agenda.) 
From: Councilmember Kesarwani  (Author), Mayor Arreguin (Co- 
Sponsor), Councilmember Davila (Co-Sponsor) 
Recommendation: Refer to the FY 2020-21 November Amendment to the Annual 
Appropriations Ordinance (AAO #1) $40,000 to reinstate partial funding for the Gun 
Buyback Program—originally proposed by Councilmember Cheryl Davila and 
authorized by the City Council on Nov. 27, 2018. 
Financial Implications: $40,000 
Contact: Rashi Kesarwani, Councilmember, District 1 (510) 981-7110 

 

 

 

17



Action Calendar 

Tuesday, January 26, 2021 DRAFT AGENDA Page 6 

 The public may comment on each item listed on the agenda for action as the item is taken up. For items 
moved to the Action Calendar from the Consent Calendar or Information Calendar, persons who spoke on 
the item during the Consent Calendar public comment period may speak again at the time the matter is 
taken up during the Action Calendar. 

The Presiding Officer will request that persons wishing to speak use the "raise hand" function to determine 
the number of persons interested in speaking at that time. Up to ten (10) speakers may speak for two 
minutes. If there are more than ten persons interested in speaking, the Presiding Officer may limit the 
public comment for all speakers to one minute per speaker. Speakers are permitted to yield their time to 
one other speaker, however no one speaker shall have more than four minutes. The Presiding Officer may, 
with the consent of persons representing both sides of an issue, allocate a block of time to each side to 
present their issue. 

Action items may be reordered at the discretion of the Chair with the consent of Council. 
 

Action Calendar – Public Hearings 
 Staff shall introduce the public hearing item and present their comments. This is followed by five-minute 

presentations each by the appellant and applicant. The Presiding Officer will request that persons wishing 
to speak use the "raise hand" function to be recognized and to determine the number of persons interested 
in speaking at that time. 

Up to ten (10) speakers may speak for two minutes. If there are more than ten persons interested in 
speaking, the Presiding Officer may limit the public comment for all speakers to one minute per speaker. 
Speakers are permitted to yield their time to one other speaker, however no one speaker shall have more 
than four minutes. The Presiding Officer may with the consent of persons representing both sides of an 
issue allocate a block of time to each side to present their issue. 

Each member of the City Council shall verbally disclose all ex parte contacts concerning the subject of the 
hearing. Councilmembers shall also submit a report of such contacts in writing prior to the commencement 
of the hearing. Written reports shall be available for public review in the office of the City Clerk. 
 

11a. 
 

Public Hearing: ZAB Appeal: 1850 Arch Street, Use Permit #ZP2019-0212 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Conduct a public hearing on the Zoning Adjustments Board 
(ZAB) decision to approve Use Permit #ZP2019-0212 to reconfigure the interior of 
the existing building to add 18 bedrooms to an existing 10-unit, 12-bedroom multi-
family residential building at 1850 Arch Street. 
Financial Implications: None 
Contact: Jordan Klein, Planning and Development, (510) 981-7400 

 

11b. 
 

Public Hearing: ZAB Appeal: 1862 Arch Street, Use Permits #ZP2019-0213 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Conduct a public hearing on the Zoning Adjustments Board 
(ZAB) decision to approve Use Permit #ZP2019-0213 to reconfigure the interior of 
the existing building to add 15 bedrooms to an existing 10-unit, 10-bedroom multi-
family residential building at 1862 Arch Street.  
Financial Implications: None 
Contact: Jordan Klein, Planning and Development, (510) 981-7400 

 

18



Action Calendar – Public Hearings 

Tuesday, January 26, 2021 DRAFT AGENDA Page 7 

11c. 
 

ZAB Appeals: 1850 and 1862 Arch Street, Use Permits #ZP2019-0212 and 
ZP2019-0213 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Upon conclusion of the agendized public hearings, adopt two 
Resolutions affirming the Zoning Adjustments Board (ZAB) decisions to approve Use 
Permits #ZP2019-0212 and ZP2019-0213 to reconfigure the interiors of the existing 
buildings to add 18 bedrooms to an existing 10-unit, 12-bedroom multi-family 
residential building at 1850 Arch Street, to add 15 bedrooms to an existing 10-unit, 
10-bedroom multi-family residential building at 1862 Arch Street, and dismiss the 
appeals.  
Financial Implications: None 
Contact: Jordan Klein, Planning and Development, (510) 981-7400 

 

12. 
 

Amend BMC Chapter 14.52 Authorizing goBerkeley Parking Program at All 
Parking Meters 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Conduct a public hearing, and upon conclusion adopt first 
reading of an Ordinance amending Berkeley Municipal Code (BMC) Chapter 14.52 to 
add all parking meter areas to the goBerkeley parking program, thereby authorizing 
the use of demand-responsive parking management citywide under the existing 
goBerkeley fee structure and program guidelines.  
Financial Implications: See report 
Contact: Liam Garland, Public Works, (510) 981-6300 

 

Action Calendar – Old Business 
 

13. 
 

Support Community Refrigerators (Continued from November 10, 2020) 
From: Councilmember Davila (Author) 
Recommendation:  
1. Adopt a Resolution to create an allocation of the homeless budget towards the 
purchasing of community refrigerators to be distributed in Council districts to provide 
access to food for those who have no refrigeration or may be food insecure.  
2. Allocate $8,000 of the budget for the purchasing of the refrigerators.  
Financial Implications: See report. 
Contact: Cheryl Davila, Councilmember, District 2, (510) 981-7120 

 

Action Calendar – New Business 
 

14. 
 

Berkeley 2020 Pedestrian Plan 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution approving the Berkeley 2020 Pedestrian 
Plan, and directing the City Manager to pursue implementation of the Plan as funding 
and staffing permit.  
Financial Implications: See report 
Contact: Liam Garland, Public Works, (510) 981-6300 

 

19



Action Calendar – New Business 

Tuesday, January 26, 2021 DRAFT AGENDA Page 8 

15. 
 

Amendments to the Berkeley Election Reform Act (BERA) to Regulate 
Officeholder Accounts and Proposed Changes to City Council Office Budget 
Expenditure and Reimbursement Policies (Resolution 67,992-N.S.) 
From: Fair Campaign Practices Commission 
Recommendation: Form a joint subcommittee of members of the City Council and 
members of the Fair Campaign Practices and Open Government Commissions to (1) 
prepare an ordinance amending the Berkeley Election Reform Act (BMC Chapter 
2.12) to prohibit or regulate officeholder accounts and (2) prepare a change in City 
Council Expenditure and Reimbursement policies (Resolution 67,992-N.S.) to have 
donations to nonprofit organizations made in the name of the entire Berkeley City 
Council on behalf of the citizens of Berkeley rather than from individual Council 
members.  
Financial Implications: None 
Contact: Sam Harvey, Commission Secretary, (510) 981-6950 

 

16a. 
 

A People’s First Sanctuary Encampment (Reviewed by the Health, Life 
Enrichment, Equity & Community Committee) 
From: Homeless Commission 
Recommendation: The City Council to adopt the People’s First Sanctuary 
Encampment Model incorporating all text in this report, urging best practices for 
Sanctuary Homeless Encampments with an oversight agency to be named by 
members of the encampment community and refer to the City Manager to fund 
liability insurance for the agency chosen by the encampment community. 
(On December 14, 2020, the Health, Life Enrichment, Equity & Community 
Committee moved the Companion Report with a qualified positive recommendation 
to the City Council to take the following action: 1.Direct the City Manager to 
incorporate parts of the Commission’s recommendations, including: providing clean 
water, sanitation, accessible toilets and trash removal services; and requiring that 
homeless services providers obtain input from clients when developing rules and 
ensure that the privacy and security of clients is respected and maintained at all 
times; 2. In addition, the City Manager shall receive the Homeless Commission’s 
recommendations and retain them for future guidance when developing homeless 
services programs and models; and 3. That the City Council reaffirms its 
commitment to dignified and client-centered homeless services.) 
Financial Implications: See report 
Contact: Brittany Carnegie, Commission Secretary, (510) 981-5400 

 

20



Action Calendar – New Business 

Tuesday, January 26, 2021 DRAFT AGENDA Page 9 

16b. 
 

Companion Report: A People’s First Sanctuary Encampment (Reviewed by the 
Health, Life Enrichment, Equity & Community Committee) 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: As part of the referral adopted by City Council on January 21, 
2020, the City Manager will direct staff to incorporate parts of the Commission’s 
recommendations which do not conflict with guidance already approved by City 
Council including: providing clean water, sanitation, accessible toilets and trash 
removal services for the sanctioned encampment, requiring that a future provider of 
services for the encampment obtain input from residents of the encampment when 
developing rules for the outdoor shelter and ensure that the privacy and security of 
residents is respected and maintained. 
(On December 14, 2020, the Health, Life Enrichment, Equity & Community 
Committee moved the Companion Report with a qualified positive recommendation 
to the City Council to take the following action: 1.Direct the City Manager to 
incorporate parts of the Commission’s recommendations, including: providing clean 
water, sanitation, accessible toilets and trash removal services; and requiring that 
homeless services providers obtain input from clients when developing rules and 
ensure that the privacy and security of clients is respected and maintained at all 
times; 2. In addition, the City Manager shall receive the Homeless Commission’s 
recommendations and retain them for future guidance when developing homeless 
services programs and models; and 3. That the City Council reaffirms its 
commitment to dignified and client-centered homeless services.) 
Financial Implications: Staff time 
Contact: Lisa Warhuus, Housing and Community Services, (510) 981-5400 

 

Council Action Items 
 

17. 
 

Declare Juneteenth as a City Holiday for the City of Berkeley (Reviewed by the 
Budget & Finance Policy Committee) 
From: Councilmember Davila (Author) 
Recommendation:  
1. Adopt a resolution declaring Juneteenth as a City Holiday for the City of Berkeley  
2. Send copies of this resolution to State Assemblywoman Buffy Wicks, State 
Senator Nancy Skinner, and United States Congresswoman Barbara Lee.  
(This item expired on December 14, 2020, and is returning to Council with no action 
taken by the Budget and Finance Policy Committee.) 
Financial Implications: See report 
Contact: Cheryl Davila, Councilmember, District 2, (510) 981-7120 

 

 
 

21



Action Calendar – Policy Committee Track Items 

Tuesday, January 26, 2021 DRAFT AGENDA Page 10 

18. 
 

Confirming Community Appointments to Reimagining Public Safety Task 
Force 
From: Mayor Arreguin (Author) 
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution: 1. Confirming the appointment of by the 
Associated Students of the University of California (ASUC) External Affairs Vice 
President to the Reimagining Public Safety Task Force. 2. Confirming the 
appointment of by the Steering Committee of the Berkeley Community Safety 
Coalition (BCSC) to the Reimagining Public Safety Task Force  
Financial Implications: No direct fiscal impacts 
Contact: Jesse Arreguin, Mayor, (510) 981-7100 

 

Information Reports 
 

19. 
 

Report for Phase 3 Study to Underground Utility Wires in Berkeley 
From: Public Works Commission, Disaster and Fire Safety Commission, 
Transportation Commission 
Contact: Joe Enke, Commission Secretary, (510) 981-6300 

 

Public Comment – Items Not Listed on the Agenda 

Adjournment 
NOTICE CONCERNING YOUR LEGAL RIGHTS: If you object to a decision by the City Council to 
approve or deny a use permit or variance for a project the following requirements and restrictions apply:  
1) No lawsuit challenging a City decision to deny (Code Civ. Proc. §1094.6(b)) or approve (Gov. Code 
65009(c)(5)) a use permit or variance may be filed more than 90 days after the date the Notice of 
Decision of the action of the City Council is mailed. Any lawsuit not filed within that 90-day period will be 
barred.  2) In any lawsuit that may be filed against a City Council decision to approve or deny a use 
permit or variance, the issues and evidence will be limited to those raised by you or someone else, orally 
or in writing, at a public hearing or prior to the close of the last public hearing on the project. 
 

Live captioned broadcasts of Council Meetings are available on Cable B-TV (Channel 33),  
via internet accessible video stream at http://www.cityofberkeley.info/CalendarEventWebcastMain.aspx 

and KPFB Radio 89.3. 
Archived indexed video streams are available at http://www.cityofberkeley.info/citycouncil. 
Channel 33 rebroadcasts the following Wednesday at 9:00 a.m. and Sunday at 9:00 a.m. 
 

Communications to the City Council are public record and will become part of the City’s electronic 
records, which are accessible through the City’s website. Please note: e-mail addresses, names, 
addresses, and other contact information are not required, but if included in any communication 
to the City Council, will become part of the public record. If you do not want your e-mail address or 
any other contact information to be made public, you may deliver communications via U.S. Postal Service 
to the City Clerk Department at 2180 Milvia Street. If you do not want your contact information included in 
the public record, please do not include that information in your communication. Please contact the City 
Clerk Department for further information. 
 
Any writings or documents provided to a majority of the City Council regarding any item on this agenda 
will be posted on the City's website at http://www.cityofberkeley.info. 

Agendas and agenda reports may be accessed via the Internet at 
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/citycouncil 

22

http://www.cityofberkeley.info/CalendarEventWebcastMain.aspx
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/citycouncil
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/citycouncil


 

Tuesday, January 26, 2021 DRAFT AGENDA Page 11 

 
COMMUNICATION ACCESS INFORMATION: 
To request a disability-related accommodation(s) to participate in the meeting, including auxiliary aids or 
services, please contact the Disability Services specialist at (510) 981-6418 (V) or (510) 981-6347 (TDD) 
at least three business days before the meeting date. 
 

 
Captioning services are provided at the meeting, on B-TV, and on the Internet. 
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 
 

23



24



Peace and Justice Commission

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 ● Tel: (510) 981-7000 ● TDD: (510) 981-6903 ● Fax: (510) 981-7099
E-Mail: manager@CityofBerkeley.info  Website: http://www.CityofBerkeley.info/Manager

CONSENT CALENDAR
January 26, 2021

To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

From: Peace and Justice Commission

Submitted by: Igor Tregub, Chairperson, Peace and Justice Commission

Subject: Opposition of New U.S. Base Construction in the Henoko-Oura Bay of 
Okinawa

RECOMMENDATION
Adopt a Resolution opposing new U.S. base construction in the Hemoko-Oura Bay of 
Okinawa.

FISCAL IMPACTS OF RECOMMENDATION
Minimal to negligible.

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS
At its March 2, 2020 meeting, the Peace and Justice Commission took the following 
action:

Recommend to the City Council a resolution opposing new U.S. base 
construction in the Hemoko-Oura Bay of Okinawa.
M/S/C: Bohn/Meola
Ayes: al-Bazian, Askary, Bohn, Gussman, Lippman, Maran, Meola, Morizawa, 

Pancoast, Perry, Pierce, Rodriguez, Taplin, Tregub
Noes: None
Abstain: None
Absent: None

BACKGROUND
A new U.S. military base is being constructed in the Pacific Ocean, in Okinawa’s Oura 
Bay1 in the Henoko region of Okinawa.  Oura Bay is one of the most biodiverse 
ecosystems on the planet with over 5,300 species and world-renowned coral reef 
systems.  Fully 262 of the species in Oura Bay are endangered, including the dugong,2 
a medium-sized marine mammal, which has been closely monitored internationally by 

1 "We shall overcome (戦場ぬ止み Ikusaba Nu Tudumi),” Trailer, YouTube video, October 3, 2015,
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=FEc_D_meOBY&list=PL55Jwk9JymqyuApWq7gi08uWQKyZhK3cH&i
ndex=20&t=0s
2 https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=jgJ46Gzkzfk&t=1s

Page 1 of 6

25

mailto:manager@cityofberkeley.info
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/Manager
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=FEc_D_meOBY&list=PL55Jwk9JymqyuApWq7gi08uWQKyZhK3cH&index=20&t=0s
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=FEc_D_meOBY&list=PL55Jwk9JymqyuApWq7gi08uWQKyZhK3cH&index=20&t=0s
rthomsen
Typewritten Text
02a.08



Opposition of New U.S. Base Construction CONSENT CALENDAR
January 26, 2021

Page 2

environmental groups due to its diminishing numbers as well as its status as a 
designated of indigenous historical value.3

On August 21, 2017, the 9th Circuit U.S.  Court of Appeals affirmed the right of 
American and Japanese conservation groups and Okinawan citizens to sue to compel 
the U.S. military to fully consider the impacts of a new U.S. military base in Okinawa, 
Japan.4  The base would pave over some of the last remaining habitat for endangered 
Okinawa dugongs, ancient cultural icons for the Okinawan people.  The lawsuit is part 
of a long-running controversy over the expansion of a U.S.  Marine air base at 
Okinawa’s Henoko Bay.  The court remanded the case to the district court for further 
proceedings.5

On January 9, 2020, American conservation groups and residents of Okinawa filed the 
opening brief in an appeal of a court ruling allowing construction of a US Marine Corps 
air base in the Japanese island’s coastal waters.  The brief, filed in the 9th Circuit Court 
of Appeals in San Francisco, highlights the base’s threat to the Okinawa dugong, a 
critically endangered marine mammal related to manatees.  Building the base will 
involve filling in and paving over hundreds of acres of rich coral and seagrass habitat 
crucial to the last surviving Okinawa dugongs.  The Turtle Island Restoration Network, 
The Center for Biological Diversity, and the Japanese co-plaintiffs are represented in 
the case by Earthjustice, which filed the appeal.  The 9th Circuit ruled in 2017 that 
Okinawa residents deserved a full hearing on their concerns.  “The Okinawa dugong, 
sea turtles, coral reefs, humans and the ocean environment need the U.S. justice 
system to guard our genuine national security by rejecting this ecologically horrendous 
project,” said Todd Steiner, founder and executive director of Turtle Island Restoration 
Network, at the time.6 
It is noteworthy that Okinawa has been forced to host almost 70% of U.S. military 
facilities in Japan7 despite consisting only 0.6% of national land mass.  Still, the 
Japanese government, in partnership with the U.S. government, continues building this 
U.S. base in the ocean – dropping concrete blocks on top of precious coral and 

3 Expansion of US Military base puts endangered Henoko Bay Dugong at risk on Okinawa, Japan,” May, 
1, 2019 (last update), https://ejatlas.org/conflict/henoko-bay-dugong-or-us-base-for-okinawa
4 Okinawa Dugong Lawsuit Judge asks why US govt did not consult with environmental experts and 
Okinawans about Landfill, Construction Impact on Okinawa Dugong Cultural Heritage,” June 28, 2018, 
https://tenthousandthingsfromkyoto.blogspot.com/2018/06/okinawa-dugong-lawsuit-judge-asks-why.html
5 Court Affirms Right to Sue U.S.  Military Over New Base's Threats to Endangered Okinawa Dugong.  
Rare Japanese Dugongs One Step Closer to Finally Getting Their Day in Court, 
https://www.biologicaldiversity.org/news/press_releases/2017/okinawa-dugong-08-21-2017.php
6 Court Affirms Right to Sue U.S.  Military Over New Base's Threats to Endangered Okinawa Dugong.  
Rare Japanese Dugongs One Step Closer to Finally Getting Their Day in Court, 
https://www.biologicaldiversity.org/news/press_releases/2017/okinawa-dugong-08-21-2017.php and
Dugong Defenders to Rally Today at S.F.  Hearing on U.S.  Airbase’s Threat to Endangered Animals 
2/3/2020),” https://biologicaldiversity.org/w/news/press-releases/dugong-defenders-to-rally-today-at-sf-
hearing-on-us-airbases-threat-to-endangered-animals-2020-02-03/ 
7https://www.pref.okinawa.jp/site/chijiko/kichitai/documents/us%20military%20base%20issues%20in%20o
kinawa.pdf

Page 2 of 6

26

https://ejatlas.org/conflict/henoko-bay-dugong-or-us-base-for-okinawa
https://tenthousandthingsfromkyoto.blogspot.com/2018/06/okinawa-dugong-lawsuit-judge-asks-why.html
https://www.biologicaldiversity.org/news/press_releases/2017/okinawa-dugong-08-21-2017.php
https://www.biologicaldiversity.org/news/press_releases/2017/okinawa-dugong-08-21-2017.php
https://biologicaldiversity.org/w/news/press-releases/dugong-defenders-to-rally-today-at-sf-hearing-on-us-airbases-threat-to-endangered-animals-2020-02-03/
https://biologicaldiversity.org/w/news/press-releases/dugong-defenders-to-rally-today-at-sf-hearing-on-us-airbases-threat-to-endangered-animals-2020-02-03/


Opposition of New U.S. Base Construction CONSENT CALENDAR
January 26, 2021

Page 3

suffocating the marine habitat with dirt and concrete – causing irreversible harm to the 
ecosystem.  It is already adversely impacting the region; contributing to species 
collapse and furthering environmental damage already sustained from rapid climate 
change.8

The Okinawan people have exhausted all legal and peaceful means of opposing this 
new base from being forced upon them – from elders staging nonviolent protests and 
sit-ins to Okinawan governors challenging the Japanese government through the legal 
system, only to be disregarded in Tokyo and Washington, D.C.9  Okinawan Diaspora 
members of Global Uchinanchu Alliance (GUA)10 have come together to reach out for 
support in this international crisis.  Most recently, the City of Berkeley has expressed its 
solidarity with the Okinawan people by passing a resolution in support of the immediate 
halting of new U.S. military base construction at Henoko, Okinawa on September 9, 
2015.

In addition to environmental concerns, there are significant financial uncertainties 
associated with this project.  Construction of the replacement facility in Okinawa for U.S.  
Marine Corps Air Station Futenma will take nearly twice as long and cost three times as 
much as the initial estimates.  This makes it certain that shutting down Futenma will now 
be delayed into the 2030s at the earliest due to additional work to improve the soft 
ground on the seafloor in the site’s offshore areas — which was found in a boring 
survey three years ago.  The entire cost of the project will is estimated to balloon from 
the initial forecast of $350 billion to $930 billion.11  The opportunity costs of this 
enormous outlay of taxpayer dollars are even more acute in the wake of the COVID-19 
pandemic than ever before.

The construction of this base has been repeatedly opposed by the Okinawan people.12  
Most recently on February 24, 2019, over 70% of Okinawans voted in opposition to the 
construction of this U.S.  Marine Corps base.13  

8 On A Firm Foundation of Mayonnaise: Human and Natural Threats to the Construction of a New U.S.  
Base at Henoko, Okinawa,” 3/15/18, https://apjjf.org/2018/10/Lummis.html 
9 Message to Obama from a Veteran in Okinawa,” YouTube video, February 29, 2016, 
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=6p5kXBod1gg&list=PL55Jwk9JymqyuApWq7gi08uWQKyZhK3cH&ind
ex=4&t=11s
10 https://uchinanchu.com/
11 Cost of Destructive U.S.  Airbase Project in Japan Nearly Triples: Revised Estimate Sparks New 
Questions About Project That Threatens Okinawa Dugongs,”
https://www.commondreams.org/newswire/2020/01/06/cost-destructive-us-airbase-project-japan-nearly-
triples  
12https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=FEc_D_meOBY&list=PL55Jwk9JymqyuApWq7gi08uWQKyZhK3cH
&index=20&t=0s
13 https://www.reuters.com/article/us-japan-okinawa/japan-to-push-ahead-with-u-s-base-relocation-
despite-okinawa-referendum-result-idUSKCN1QE06Q

Page 3 of 6

27

https://apjjf.org/2018/10/Lummis.html
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=6p5kXBod1gg&list=PL55Jwk9JymqyuApWq7gi08uWQKyZhK3cH&index=4&t=11s
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=6p5kXBod1gg&list=PL55Jwk9JymqyuApWq7gi08uWQKyZhK3cH&index=4&t=11s
https://www.commondreams.org/newswire/2020/01/06/cost-destructive-us-airbase-project-japan-nearly-triples
https://www.commondreams.org/newswire/2020/01/06/cost-destructive-us-airbase-project-japan-nearly-triples


Opposition of New U.S. Base Construction CONSENT CALENDAR
January 26, 2021

Page 4

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY
While there may be no identifiable direct environmental impacts or opportunities 
associated with the subject of this report, this resolution is a statement against U.S. 
involvement in grave environmental destruction in the Pacific Ocean off the coast of 
Okinawa.

RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION
While the Peace and Justice Commission recommends adopting the resolution for a 
number of reasons, environmental reasons are at the core of this recommendation.   On 
January 21, 2020, the City Council, by a 4-0-5 vote, took no action on a previous version 
of this resolution.14  It was noted at the time by some members of the City Council who 
abstained that a stronger environmental nexus was needed for them to consider 
supporting this resolution.   This resolution is responsive to these concerns by highlighting 
the destructive environmental impacts of this project.

ALTERNATIVE ACTIONS CONSIDERED
The Peace and Justice Commission considered the alternative of not taking further 
action on this topic, but chose to address the concerns of these members by 
recommending a resolution with a more direct environmental nexus.

CITY MANAGER
The City Manager takes no position on the content and recommendations of the 
Commission’s Report. 

CONTACT PERSON
Igor Tregub, Chairperson, Peace and Justice Commission
Melissa McDonough, Senior Management Analyst, City Manager’s Office, 510-981-
7402

Attachments: 
1: Resolution 

Exhibit A: Resolution Opposing New U.S. Base Construction in Henolo-Oura Bay 
of Okinawa

14 https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2020/01_Jan/Documents/01-
21_Annotated_Agenda_pdf.aspx

Page 4 of 6

28



RESOLUTION NO. ##,###-N.S.

RESOLUTION OPPOSING NEW U.S. BASE CONSTRUCCTION IN HENOKO-OURA 
BAY OF OKINAWA

WHEREAS, he Peace and Justice Commission advises the City Council on all matters 
relating to the City of Berkeley's role in issues of peace and social justice (Berkeley 
Municipal Code Chapter 3.68.070); and 

WHEREAS, a new U.S.  military base is being constructed in the ocean of Oura Bay. This 
bay is in the Henoko region of Okinawa.  It is one of the most bio-diverse ecosystems on 
the planet with over 5,300 species and world-renown coral reef systems.  262 of the 
species in Oura Bay are endangered, including the dugong which have been closely 
monitored internationally by environmental groups due to its diminishing numbers as well 
as its status as a designated a cultural property of indigenous historical value; and

WHEREAS, on August 21, 2017, the 9th Circuit U.S.  Court of Appeals affirmed the right 
of American and Japanese conservation groups and Okinawan citizens to sue to compel 
the U.S. military to fully consider the impacts of a new U.S. military base in Okinawa, 
Japan.  The base would pave over some of the last remaining habitat for endangered 
Okinawa dugongs, ancient cultural icons for the Okinawan people.  The lawsuit is part of 
a long-running controversy over the expansion of a U.S.  Marine air base at Okinawa’s 
Henoko Bay.  The court remanded the case to the district court for further proceedings; 
and

WHEREAS, on January 9, 2020, American conservation groups and residents of 
Okinawa filed the opening brief in an appeal of a court ruling allowing construction of a 
US Marine Corps air base in the Japanese island’s coastal waters; and

WHEREAS, construction of the replacement facility in Okinawa for U.S.  Marine Corps 
Air Station Futenma will take nearly twice as long and cost three times as much as the 
initial estimates.  This makes it certain that shutting down Futenma will now be delayed 
into the 2030s at the earliest due to additional work to improve the soft ground on the 
seafloor in the site’s offshore areas — which was found in a boring survey three years 
ago.  The entire cost of the project will balloon from the initial forecast of $350 billion to 
$930 billion; and

WHEREAS, the construction of this base has been opposed by the Okinawan people 
repeatedly. Most recently on February 24, 2019, over 70% of Okinawans voted in 
opposition to the construction of this particular U.S.  Marine Corps base outside of Camp 
Schwab.  Still, the Japanese government, in partnership with the U.S. government, 
continues building this U.S. base in the ocean – dropping concrete blocks on top of 
precious coral and suffocating the marine habitat with dirt and concrete – causing 
irreversible harm to the ecosystem.  It is already adversely impacting the region; 

Page 5 of 6

29

https://ejatlas.org/conflict/henoko-bay-dugong-or-us-base-for-okinawa
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=jgJ46Gzkzfk&t=1s
https://tenthousandthingsfromkyoto.blogspot.com/2018/06/okinawa-dugong-lawsuit-judge-asks-why.html
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=FEc_D_meOBY&list=PL55Jwk9JymqyuApWq7gi08uWQKyZhK3cH&index=20&t=0s
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=FEc_D_meOBY&list=PL55Jwk9JymqyuApWq7gi08uWQKyZhK3cH&index=20&t=0s


Opposition of New U.S. Base Construction CONSENT CALENDAR
January 26, 2021

Page 6

contributing to species collapse and furthering environmental damage already sustained 
from rapid climate change; and 

WHEREAS, already, Okinawa has been forced to host almost 70% of U.S.  military 
facilities in Japan despite consisting only 0.6% of national landmass; and  

WHEREAS, this treatment of Okinawa as a colonial military outpost has continued since 
the Japanese annexation of the once sovereign nation of the Ryūkyū Kingdom.  Then 
during WWII, Okinawan land was destroyed in a war between U.S. and Japan, taking 
almost a third of the entire Okinawan population.  From there, the U.S. construction of 
military bases began against the will of the Okinawan people and continues today; and

WHEREAS, the Okinawan people have exhausted all legal and peaceful means of 
opposing this new base from being forced upon them – from elders staging nonviolent 
protests and sit-ins to Okinawan governors challenging the Japanese government 
through the legal system, only to be disregarded in Tokyo and Washington, D.C.  
Okinawan Diaspora members of Global Uchinanchu Alliance (GUA) have come together 
to reach out for support in this international crisis; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Berkeley has expressed its solidarity with the Okinawan people 
by passing a resolution in support of the immediate halting of new U.S. military base 
construction at Henoko, Okinawa, passed through the Berkeley City Council on 
September 9, 2015.

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Council of the City of Berkeley directs the City 
Clerk to send the following message to the U.S.  House Armed Services Committee:
The City of Berkeley, California stands in solidarity with the people of Okinawa in 
demanding the immediate and complete halt of the U.S.  Marine Corps base construction 
in Henoko, Okinawa.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Council of the City of Berkeley asks the City Clerk 
to send a copy of this resolution to Representative Barbara Lee and Senator Dianne 
Feinstein. 

Page 6 of 6

30

https://www.pref.okinawa.jp/site/chijiko/kichitai/documents/us%20military%20base%20issues%20in%20okinawa.pdf
https://www.pref.okinawa.jp/site/chijiko/kichitai/documents/us%20military%20base%20issues%20in%20okinawa.pdf
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=6p5kXBod1gg&list=PL55Jwk9JymqyuApWq7gi08uWQKyZhK3cH&index=4&t=11s
https://uchinanchu.com/


Public Works Commission

1

CONSENT CALENDAR
January 26, 2021

To:  Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 

From:  Public Works Commission

Submitted by: Matthew Freiberg, Chair, Public Works Commission 

Subject: Public Works Commission Recommendation for the Five-Year Paving 
Plan 

RECOMMENDATION 
Adopt a resolution that recommends approval of the first three years of the Five-Year 
Paving Plan, for FY2021 to FY2025, as proposed by Staff, with special advisories 
regarding prioritization of permeable paving on select streets. 

SUMMARY
This Report to council is comprised of two sections:

1. A recommendation on the City’s Proposed 5-Year Paving Plan
2. An update from the Public Works Commission (PWC) on the approach to 

address the on-going paving condition deficit through the creation and 
implementation of a Long-Term Paving Master Plan.

(1) The City of Berkeley’s Street Rehabilitation and Repair Policy (Street Policy) 
requires that a 5-year paving plan be reviewed each year and adopted formally by the 
City Council, with advice from the PWC. The Rehabilitation Plan (commonly called the 
Paving Plan) for FY 2021 to FY2025 has been reviewed by the PWC and it is 
recommending adoption of the first three years of the plan.  It is worth noting that streets 
that are prioritized as part of the Vision Zero high injury streets, Pedestrian Plan, and 
Bicycle Plan only include the paving of these streets, they do not include any of the 
associated roadway improvements that are recommended as part of this plan. It is 
recommended that City Council secure additional funding to ensure that these 
improvements are funded and incorporated into the redesign of these roads.

(2) Berkeley’s streets are in an “at-risk” condition, far from the City’s target of having our 
streets in “good” condition, and continue to decline year on year.  In January 2020, City 
Council directed the Public Works Department and the PWC to develop a long-term 
Paving Master Plan.  Due to the suspension of commissions and the continued 
suspension of subcommittee activities, limited progress has been made developing this 
plan.  Currently Staff and the PWC are collaborating on an update of the Paving Policy 

Page 1 of 16

31

rthomsen
Typewritten Text
02a.09



PWC Recommendation for the Five-Year Paving Plan CONSENT CALENDAR

2

that will provide guidance for the future of paving in the City and the development of the 
Paving Master Plan. 

FISCAL IMPACTS OF RECOMMENDATION
This Paving Plan is based on the Adopted Biennial Budget for Fiscal Years 2021 & 
2022, and on the following estimated available funding levels from all sources, including 
State Transportation (Gas) Tax, Measure B, Measure BB, Measure F, and the General 
Fund.

Five-Year Paving Program Funding Sources by Year, in $
Fund Description FY 2021 FY 2022 FY 2023 FY 2024 FY 2025

State Transportation Tax 495,303 495,303 495,303 495,303 495,303

State Transportation Tax –SB1 1,230,000 1,310,000 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000

Measure B - Local Streets & Roads 660,000 330,000 0 0 0

Measure BB – Local Streets & Roads 1,380,000 1,654,000 2,700,000 2,700,000 2,700,000

Measure F Vehicle -Registration Fee 155,000 155,000 155,000 155,000 155,000

Capital Improvement Fund 1,925,000 1,925,000 1,925,000 1,925,000 1,925,000

 TOTAL 5,845,303 5,869,303 7,272,303 7,272,303 7,272,303 

  
In addition to the City’s program funding, additional grant and bond funding has been 
made available for paving in FY 2023, summarized below.

Other Funding for Paving by Year, in $
Funding Source FY 2021 FY 2022 FY 2023 FY 2024 FY 2025

Grants (South Side Complete 
Streets – Bancroft, Telegraph, and 
Dana)*

0 0 1,200,000 0 0

 TOTAL 0 0 1,200,000 0 0

*The grant funded projects are not included in the five-year paving plan

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS
The City’s streets continue to be evaluated as “at risk,” and do not meet the City’s target 
to be in “good” condition. The latest pavement condition analysis conducted by PEI, 
identifies the city-wide average Pavement Condition Index (PCI) to be 57, ranging 
across council districts from 52.8% to 61.9%.  The average PCI is down from 58 in 
2019.  The lack of resources available to the Paving Program are resulting in a 
continual decline in the condition of the City’s streets. 

District Area (sqft) Mileage Percent of 
Total PCI in 2020

Page 2 of 16

32



PWC Recommendation for the Five-Year Paving Plan CONSENT CALENDAR

3

District 1 7,652,427 38.6 19.6% 55.3

District 2 6,164,641 32.7 15.8% 52.8

District 3 5,132,474 24.3 13.1% 58.8

District 4 3,411,318 16.1 8.7% 53.7

District 5 6,209,611 37.1 15.9% 61.9

District 6 4,750,199 35.3 12.2% 56.5

District 7 1,672,660 7.8 4.3% 55.9

District 8 4,053,495 23.0 10.4% 58.1

This report addresses the following topics:
 Review of the new 5-year paving plan for fiscal years 2021 – 2025.
 An update on the progress towards updating the City’s Paving Policy and for a 

master plan to improve the condition of Berkeley’s streets.

Review of 5-year Paving Plan

Staff prepared a list of paving projects for the new 5-year planning period (FY2021 – 
2025). This was prepared using, StreetSaver program analysis, knowledge of what has 
been accomplished in recent years, and available funding. The proposed plan is 
summarized as follows.

FY2021 FY2022 FY2023 FY2024 FY2025 Total % of 
Total

Square Footage of 
Paving
Arterials, sqft 0 0 7,200 0 54,910 62,110 2.3%
Collectors, sqft 61,700 128,340 177,040 194,515 37,500 599,095 22.0%
Residential, sqft 351,450 464,628 395,067 549,901 304,620 2,065,666 75.8%
Total Area 413,150 592,968 579,307 744,416 397,030 2,726,871 100.0%
Miles
Arterials, miles 0.00 0.00 0.04 0.00 0.21 0.31 2.1%
Collectors, miles 0.10 0.68 0.95 0.94 0.21 2.88 19.2%
Residential, miles 2.08 2.65 2.05 3.41 1.60 11.79 78.7%
Total miles 2.18 3.33 3.04 4.35 2.04 14.98 100.0%
Total Bikeways 0.76 1.31 1.34 2.21 1.38 7.01 53%
Bicycle, Pedestrian, 
and Vision Zero 
High Injury Streets

0.58 1.32 2.29 2.22 1.38 7.79 52%

Cost
Arterials, $millions $0 $0 $0.102 $0.000 $0.683 $0.785 2.6%
Collectors, 
$millions

$0.269 $1.519 $1.987 $2.685 $0.634 $7.095 23.6%

Page 3 of 16

33



PWC Recommendation for the Five-Year Paving Plan CONSENT CALENDAR

4

Residential, 
$millions

$5.189 $3.654 $3.934 $4.005 $4.509 $22.212 73.8%

Discretionary,
$millions

Staff intends to use all of the Discretionary Fund to comply with the City Council 
referral to use 50% of funding on Bicycle, Pedestrian, and Vision Zero High Injury 
Streets.

Curb Ramps $0.150 $0.348 $0.240 $0.474 $0.126 $1.344 5%
Total cost, 
$millions

$5.845 $5.869 $7.275 $7.275 $7.275 $30.092 100%

Total Bikeways $1.267 $2.922 $3.340 $4.373 $4.509 $16.412 55%
Bicycle, Pedestrian, 
and Vision Zero 
High Injury Streets

$1.181 $2.922 $4.291 $4.373 $4.510 $17.277 57%

The above summary does not include $1.2 million in grant funding in FY2023.

The PWC paving subcommittee discussed the plan with Public Works Department staff 
and we have the following comments.

1. Many of the City’s streets with the lowest PCI are on residential streets.  The 
proposed plan by staff shifts more focus of the paving plan to residential streets.  
While this prioritization of residential streets falls outside of the City’s Paving Policy 
for allocation of paving funds by street type, this plan helps address the roads that 
are in the greatest need and will do the most to improve the citywide average PCI.  
The PWC agrees with this approach in the near term but recommends shifting focus 
back to the primary transportation network streets (arterials, collectors, bus routes, 
and the low stress bike network).  

The following table provides a breakdown of the cost allocated to different street 
types in the current five-year paving plan compared to the Paving Policy:

Cost Breakdown 
Per Paving Policy1

Cost Breakdown 
Per 5-Year Paving Plan

(FY2021-2025)
Arterial streets 10% 2.6%
Collector streets 50%  23.6%
Residential streets 25%  73.8%
Discretionary 15% 0%

2. The plan reviewed against the council referral to Develop a Bicycle Lane and 
Pedestrian Street Improvements Policy, which recommends that at least 50 percent 
of the repaving budget be allocated to Vision Zero pedestrian high injury streets and 
bikeways between 2022 to 2025. The 5-year paving plan was reviewed against the 

1 This allocation is specific to Measure B Sales Tax and Gas Tax revenues, but as a matter of practice has been 
applied to all sources of revenues in recent years. 

Page 4 of 16

34



PWC Recommendation for the Five-Year Paving Plan CONSENT CALENDAR

5

council referral figures in addition to the May 2017 Bike Plan, the March 2020 Vision 
Zero Action Plan, and the October 2020 Draft Pedestrian Plan.

Between 2022 - 2025, approximately 58 percent of the paving dollars ($16.1 million) 
and 56 percent of the paved miles (7.2 miles) are allocated to the bikeway and vision 
zero high injury streets, so the requirement in the council referral is met. However, 
there are no funds allocated towards the “Prioritized High-Injury Streets” identified in 
the Draft Pedestrian Plan. The high priority bikeways (Tier 1 & 2 in the bike plan) 
make up slightly more than half of the bikeway miles & slightly less than half of the 
bikeway dollars allocated in the paving plan. The lower priority (Tier 3) bikeways 
account for the balance. Inclusion of some of the high priority projects in the 
pedestrian plan and shifting some of the Tier 3 bikeway projects to Tier 1 bikeway 
projects should be considered to better meet the intent of the council referral.

It is worth noting that the five year paving plan does not include any of the additional 
roadway improvements that are intended to improve bike and pedestrian safety that 
are recommended in the Bicycle Plan, Pedestrian Plan, and Vision Zero.  It is 
recommended that City Council secure additional funding to ensure that these 
improvements are funded and incorporated into the redesign of these roads.

3. The PWC has reviewed the plan for contiguous streets and that the work is bundled 
for cost effective implementation. While there are multiple short sections of paving in 
the current five-year plan, staff has made every effort to bundle projects to the 
maximum extent practicable, with consideration of other extenuating factors such as 
subsurface utility maintenance and funding limitations.  This is balanced with having 
the paving work be spread equitably across all Council Districts of the City. Over the 
5-year Paving Plan, financial resources and miles of roads surfaced are allocated 
fairly equally across all council districts.  This allocation is very much in line with the 
historic interpretation of equity that has been practiced by the City.  

District Mileage Percent 
of Total

PCI in 
2020

FY 2021 – 25 
Investment ($)

FY 2021 – 25 
Miles Surfaced

Projected 
PCI in 2025

District 1 38.6 19.6% 55.3 $4,046,266 (13%) 1.69 (11%) 47

District 2 32.7 15.8% 52.8 $4,590,248 (15%) 1.73 (12%) 46

District 3 24.3 13.1% 58.8 $4,620,579 (15%) 2.38 (16%) 52

District 4 16.1 8.7% 53.7 $4,073,349 (14%) 1.36 (9%) 50

District 5 37.1 15.9% 61.9 $3,911,654 (13%) 1.68 (11%) 55

District 6 35.3 12.2% 56.5 $2,382,033 (8%) 2.06 (14%) 49

District 7 7.8 4.3% 55.9 $3,576,655 (12%) 2.39 (16%) 58

District 8 23.0 10.4% 58.1 $2,891,269 (10%) 1.7 (11%) 53

The Public Works Commission is currently evaluating an update to the definition of 
equity.  The leading definition would move the Public Works Department towards a 
results oriented performance evaluation, where investment of resources are 

Page 5 of 16

35



PWC Recommendation for the Five-Year Paving Plan CONSENT CALENDAR

6

allocated in a way that seeks to provide equivalent PCI outcomes across all planning 
areas, rather than focusing purely on the monetary inputs. 

4. The PWC agrees that 15% of available funding should be reserved for discretionary 
and/or demonstration projects. The PWC is in the process of developing a 
recommendation for how to manage this reserve as well as criteria to help prioritize 
projects to be funded with the discretionary reserve. Over the next five years, Staff 
intends to use the entirety of this funding source to comply with the October 29, 
2019 City Council Referral that requires 50 percent of funding to be allocated 
towards priority bicycle paths and high injury vision zero streets.   As a result, there 
are not any permeable paving projects included in the five-year plan.  The PWC 
encourages City Council and Staff to consider incorporating pervious roadway 
surfaces as part of the Southside Complete Streets Project.  

5. The PWC would also like to make note that the current plan does not include the 
paving of Derby and Ward Streets between Shattuck Avenue and Telegraph 
Avenues.  The Public Works Commission only became aware of this council 
resolution from September 2019 on November 2020.  This note in our report is 
highlight that these streets will be brought up for consideration in next year’s five-
year plan for years three, four, or five of that plan. 

Master Plan to Improve the Condition of Berkeley’s Streets

The current citywide average PCI is 57 on a scale of 100, and is firmly in the “at risk,” 
category.  Streets in this category tend to degrade at a more accelerated rate than 
those in a “good” or “fair” condition.  Under the proposed paving plan, the PCI is 
estimated to dip to 52 by 2023.  This is far from the City’s target of having our streets in 
“good” condition (PCI of 70 -79), and it is clear that action is needed to reverse this 
trend before our roads fall into “failing” condition where massive reconstructs will be 
needed for roads city-wide.  Below is a summary of the current conditions of Berkeley’s 
streets by road type that has been prepared by staff and PEI. 

Section/Area PCI in 2020 PCI in 2019 Total Center 
Lane Miles

Overall system 57 58 214.2
Arterial streets 63 66 21.9

Collector streets 60 64 37.1
Residential streets 55 55 155.3

Bus routes 62 66 39.2
Bike lanes 61 62 63.6

In January 2020, Council provided direction for the Public Works Department and the 
PWC to develop a long-term Paving Master Plan to develop a road map and understand 
the funding and resources needed to improve Berkeley’s streets to a “good” condition. 
Due to the suspension of the City Commissions during COVID, little progress has been 

Page 6 of 16

36



PWC Recommendation for the Five-Year Paving Plan CONSENT CALENDAR

7

made today.  However, with the PWC re-authorized to commence meetings, we are re-
engaging in this process, addressing the following items starting with items 1 and 2. 

1. Update the Street Policy – The policy was last updated in 2009. The policy should 
be reviewed and updated to incorporate current thinking about using life cycle cost 
analysis, Vision Zero, equity, sustainable multi-benefit technologies, and other 
factors.  With these considerations in mind, the updated policy should include new 
performance metrics that capture the diversity objective the City holds for our road 
network. 

2. Equity – Historically, it has been the practice of the City to evaluate equity in 
roadway investment in terms of equivalent allocation of financial resources and miles 
of roadway surfaced among the Council Districts.  However, this does not result in 
equal outcomes across the City.  
The Public Works Commission is currently evaluating an update to the definition of 
equity.  The leading definition would move the Public Works Department towards a 
results oriented performance evaluation, where investment of resources are 
allocated in a way that seeks to provide equivalent PCI outcomes across all planning 
areas, rather than focusing purely on the monetary inputs. 

3. A long-term paving capital plan – The Master Plan should include a 40-year paving 
plan to help the City identify the most efficient path to move the current PCI from “at 
risk” to “good.” This approach spans two cycles of a typical asphalt road’s expected 
useful life, and allows for decisions on street paving to be optimized for the greatest 
bang for our buck over the full life of our assets, rather than the current short-term 
approach.

4. Financing Strategy -- Lack of funding for street paving plays a major role in the 
overall condition of the City’s streets.  As part of the Master Plan, the work should 
include a long-term funding gap analysis, a financial plan to address the funding 
gap, a cost-of-service rate study to develop recommended rates needed to 
sustainably finance the Paving Program, and an impact fee analysis to allow the City 
to recoup the cost of accelerated wear on our roads imposed by heavy vehicles.  We 
also recommend the master plan include an evaluation of grant funding 
opportunities.

5. Public Engagement -- Public feedback is critical to the successful development and 
implementation of any City Plan.  The Master Plan should provide guidance for 
public engagement strategies that will allow the collection and synthesis of public 
feedback regarding the future of the City streets.

The recommendation to approve the 5-year paving plan and to forward it to Council was 
discussed by the Public Works Commission at its November 12, 2020 meeting.  
Motion to approve made by Krpata and seconded by Hitchen. Ayes: Freiberg,   
Humbert, Schueler, Erbe, Constantine; Noes: Nesbitt; Abstain: none; Absent: Brennan,

Page 7 of 16

37



PWC Recommendation for the Five-Year Paving Plan CONSENT CALENDAR

8

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY

Permeable pavers provide a way of reducing the volume of storm water entering the 
City storm drain system; improving the quality of urban runoff from the roadway that is 
conveyed to local creeks and the Bay; and reducing greenhouse gas emissions by 
installing a durable product that requires less maintenance than traditional asphalt 
concrete.

Full Depth Reclamation (FDR), a cost-effective alternative to traditional street 
reconstruction methods, is planned for use in several of the streets selected for 
rehabilitation. It recycles much of the existing pavement on site, and incorporates it into 
the pavement subgrade, thereby reducing truck trips to and from construction sites. In 
addition, the Paving Plan includes repair of the City’s deteriorating storm drain 
infrastructure that minimizes degradation of water quality in local creeks and the Bay.
These repairs are consistent with the City of Berkeley’s 2011 Watershed Management 
Plan. Furthermore, the Paving Plan also proposes approximately 5.8 miles of 
improvements to bicycle routes, and improvements to sidewalk and curb ramps adopted 
from the Bicycle and Pedestrian Plans. These steps result in lower emissions of 
greenhouse gases into the environment, which is consistent with the goals of the 2009 
Berkeley Climate Action Plan.

RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION
It is the policy of the City of Berkeley that there shall be a Five-year Street Rehabilitation 
Plan for the entire City to be adopted by the City Council.  Further, the proposed plan 
provides for much needed street infrastructure improvements that are consistent with 
the City’s Street Policy.  

ALTERNATIVE ACTIONS CONSIDERED
None. 

CITY MANAGER REPORT
Staff recommends the City Council approve the first three years of the paving plan, per 
the Commission’s recommendation. In addition, to respond to the recent 
recommendations of the City Audit, staff updated the Street Repair Program’s webpage 
to identify the level of funding necessary to move our street conditions from at-risk to 
good, and to identify funding sources to achieve and maintain our streets in good 
condition.

CONTACT PERSON
Matthew Freiberg, Chair, Public Works Commission (831) 566-3628
Liam Garland, Director of Public Works, (510) 981-6402
Joe Enke, Acting Manager of Engineering (510) 981-6411

Attachments: 
1. Resolution 
2. Five-Year Street Rehabilitation Plan for FY 2021 to FY 2025

Page 8 of 16

38

https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Public_Works/Sidewalks-Streets-Utility/Street_Repair_Program.aspx


PWC Recommendation for the Five-Year Paving Plan CONSENT CALENDAR

9

3. Map of proposed roadway surfacing projects

Page 9 of 16

39



RESOLUTION NO. ##,###-N.S.

APPROVAL OF THE FIRST THREE YEARS OF THE FIVE-YEAR PAVING PLAN FOR 
FY 2021 TO FY2025

WHEREAS, the Street Rehabilitation Policy, Resolution No. 55,384-N.S. approved on
May 22, 1990, requires there be a Five-Year Street Paving Plan for the entire City to be
adopted by the City Council, and

WHEREAS, the City Council requests advice from the Public Works Commission on the 
Five-Year Paving Plan; and

WHEREAS, on November 12, 2020, the Public Works Commission voted to approve 
the first three years of the Five-Year Paving Plan, submitting the FY 2021 to FY2025 
Five-year Paving Plan to City Council, attached as Exhibit A; 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Berkeley that the 
first three years of the FY 2021 to FY2025 Five-Year Paving Plan attached as Exhibit A 
hereof, is hereby adopted.

Exhibit A: Five-Year Paving Plan for FY2021 to FY2025

Page 10 of 16

40



EXHIBIT A
5-YEAR STREET REHABILITATION PLAN FOR FY 2021 TO FY 2025

Revised: 10/30/2020

Fiscal 
Year Street ID Section ID Street Name From To Class

Treatment 
(from 

StreetSaver)

 Updated Total 
Cost District P Mileage Current  

PCI Last M&R 
Date

Last Paved

2021 319006 45 ADA ST SACRAMENTO ST ORDWAY ST R Reconstruct 780,000$       1, 5 N 0.26 25 10/1/1992 MILL AND OVERLAY W/FABRIC
2021 932042 30 BANCROFT WAY 6TH ST 8TH ST R Heavy Mtce 70,800$         2 3A 0.13 55 11/1/1986 MILL AND OVERLAY W/FABARIC
2021 932042 35 BANCROFT WAY 8TH ST SAN PABLO AVE R Heavy Mtce 86,000$         2 3A 0.19 59 NA
2021 829104 60 CHANNING WAY MARTIN LUTHER KING  MILVIA ST R Reconstruct 462,920$       4 2A to 2B* 0.13 15 5/1/1995 THIN AC OVERLAY(1.5 INCHES)
2021 729104 63 CHANNING WAY MILVIA ST SHATTUCK AVE R Heavy Rehab 267,640$       4 2A to 2B* 0.13 34 9/1/1991 MILL AND OVERLAY W/FABRIC
2021 319129 38 CURTIS ST HOPKINS ST CEDAR ST R Reconstruct 202,267$       1 N 0.07 11 12/1/1992 MILL AND OVERLAY W/FABRIC
2021 322129 40 CURTIS ST CEDAR ST VIRGINIA ST R Reconstruct 360,800$       1 N 0.13 16 10/1/1992 MILL AND OVERLAY W/FABRIC
2021 729152 64 DURANT AVE SHATTUCK AVE FULTON ST C Heavy Rehab 268,880$       4 N 0.10 32 8/12/1997 MILL AND OVERLAY W/FABRIC
2021 739186 60 EMERSON ST ADELINE ST SHATTUCK AVE R Light Rehab 192,320$       3 N 0.15 59 4/1/2001 RECONSTRUCT STRUCTURE (AC)
2021 839191 60 ESSEX ST ADELINE ST TREMONT ST R Heavy Mtce 88,160$         3 N 0.06 68 4/1/2001 RECONSTRUCT STRUCTURE (AC)
2021 739191 62 ESSEX ST TREMONT ST SHATTUCK AVE R Light Rehab 141,920$       3 N 0.11 64 4/1/2001 RECONSTRUCT STRUCTURE (AC)
2021 418290 30 HOLLY ST ROSE ST CEDAR ST R Reconstruct 596,960$       1 N 0.17 7 10/1/1992 MILL AND OVERLAY W/FABRIC
2021 115550 25 SPRUCE ST ARCH ST EUNICE ST R Heavy Rehab 379,834$       5, 6 3C* 0.19 47 11/1/1990 MILL AND THIN OVERLAY

2021 920528 50 2ND ST UNIVERSITY AVE ADDISON ST R Heavy Rehab 560,000$       2 N 0.09 32 8/27/1997 MILL AND OVERLAY W/FABRIC
2021 320686 10 SPINNAKER WAY BREAKWATER DR MARINA BLVD R Reconstruct 1,000,000$    1 N 0.28 22 8/1/1991 OVERLAY
2021 CONTINGENCY 386,802$       

TOTAL FUNDING 5,845,303$    2.18
22% bike/ped 
23% bike/ped not incl contingency

FISCAL YEAR 2021 TOTALS

Total Estimated Cost and Miles $5,845,303 2.18 miles

Mileage Estimated Cost % Cost % Mileage District Cost Miles
Arterials 0.00 $0 0% 0% 1 $2,550,027 0.78
Collectors 0.10 $268,880 5% 5% 2 $716,800 0.40
Residentials 2.08 $5,189,621 95% 95% 3 $422,400 0.33

4 $999,440 0.36
Bikeways 0.76 $1,267,194 23% 35% 5 $579,917 0.22
Curb Ramps $150,000 3% 6 $189,917 0.09
Total $1,417,194 26% 7 $0 0.00

8 $0 0.00
$5,458,501 2.18

Note: Column P denotes presence of bike facility type (1 paved path, 2A 2B bike lane, 3A sign-only, 3C Sharrows, 3E bike blvd, 4 cycle track); C for bus route; and N for none.

*Proposed bike facilities from 2017 Bike Plan. Draft 5-Year Street Rehabilitation Plan FY 2021-2025_v14.xlsx

Page 11 of 16

41



EXHIBIT A
5-YEAR STREET REHABILITATION PLAN FOR FY 2021 TO FY 2025

Revised: 10/30/2020

Fiscal 
Year Street ID Section ID Street Name From To Class

Treatment 
(from 

StreetSaver)

 Updated Total 
Cost District P Mileage Current  

PCI Last M&R 
Date

Last Paved

2022 931073 50 BROWNING ST ADDISON ST DWIGHT WAY R Heavy Rehab 953,600$       2 N 0.50 35 10/1/1995 MILL AND OVERLAY W/FABRIC
2022 213119 10 COLUSA AVE NORTH CITY LIMIT SOLANO AVE C Heavy Rehab 1,518,904$    5 2B 0.68 44 11/1/1986 MILL AND OVERLAY W/FABRIC
2022* 728180 50 ELLSWORTH ST BANCROFT WAY DWIGHT WAY R Reconstruct 319,661$       7 N 0.25 22 11/1/1992 MILL AND OVERLAY W/FABRIC
2022* 736180 60 ELLSWORTH ST DWIGHT WAY WARD ST R Light Mtce 113,356$       7 N 0.38 92 5/11/2011 RECONSTRUCT SURFACE (AC)
2022* 736180 65 ELLSWORTH ST WARD ST STUART ST R Light Mtce 22,671$         3 N 0.05 92 5/11/2011 RECONSTRUCT SURFACE (AC)
2022* ELLSWORTH ST STUART ST ASHBY AVE R Light Mtce 113,356$       3 N 0.24 92 5/11/2011 RECONSTRUCT SURFACE (AC)
2022 736227 60 FULTON ST DWIGHT WAY BLAKE ST R Heavy Mtce 82,628$         3 3E* 0.06 60 6/1/1993 MEDIUM AC OVERLAY (2 INCHES)
2022 736227 61 FULTON ST BLAKE ST PARKER ST R Heavy Mtce 27,840$         3 3E* 0.07 69 6/1/1993 MEDIUM AC OVERLAY (2 INCHES)
2022 736227 63 FULTON ST PARKER ST STUART ST R Heavy Mtce 382,092$       3 3E* 0.25 58 2/1/1992 THIN AC OVERLAY(1.5 INCHES)
2022 920275 40 HEINZ AVE 7TH ST SAN PABLO AVE R Reconstruct 910,408$       2 3E 0.26 22 11/1/1992 MILL AND OVERLAY W/FABRIC
2022* STUART ST FULTON ST ELLSWORTH ST R Heavy Rehab 196,000$       3 N 0.12 39 11/13/1998 RECONSTRUCT STRUCTURE (AC)
2022* 736561 70 STUART ST ELLSWORTH HILLEGASS AVE R Heavy Rehab 319,661$       7 N 0.35 39 11/13/1998 RECONSTRUCT STRUCTURE (AC)
2022* 636561 78 STUART ST HILLEGASS AVE BENVENUE AVE R Heavy Rehab 79,915$         8 N 0.07 33 11/13/1998 RECONSTRUCT STRUCTURE (AC)
2022* STUART ST BENVENUE AVE COLLEGE AVE R Heavy Rehab 132,400$       8 N 0.07 33 11/13/1998 RECONSTRUCT STRUCTURE (AC)
2022 CONTINGENCY 696,811$       

TOTAL FUNDING 5,869,303$    3.32
50% bike/ped 
56% bike/ped not incl contingencyy
73% bike/ped not incl contingency or ebmud share

* in Fiscal Year column denotes coordination and/or cost sharing with EBMUD project

FISCAL YEAR 2022 TOTALS

Total Estimated Cost and Miles $5,869,303 3.32 miles

Mileage Estimated Cost % Cost % Mileage District Cost Miles
Arterials 0.00 $0 0% 0% 1 $0 0.00
Collectors 0.68 $1,518,904 29% 20% 2 $1,864,008 0.76
Residentials 2.65 $3,653,588 71% 80% 3 $824,587 0.78

4 $0 0.00
Bikeways 1.31 $2,921,872 56% 39% 5 $1,518,904 0.68
Curb Ramps $348,000 7% 6 $0 0.00
Total $3,269,872 63% 7 $752,678 0.97

8 $212,315 0.14
$5,172,492 3.32

Note: Column P denotes presence of bike facility type (1 paved path, 2A 2B bike lane, 3A sign-only, 3C Sharrows, 3E bike blvd, 4 cycle track); C for bus route; and N for none.

*Proposed bike facilities from 2017 Bike Plan. Draft 5-Year Street Rehabilitation Plan FY 2021-2025_v14.xlsx

Page 12 of 16

42



EXHIBIT A
5-YEAR STREET REHABILITATION PLAN FOR FY 2021 TO FY 2025

Revised: 10/30/2020

Fiscal 
Year Street ID Section ID Street Name From To Class

Treatment 
(from 

StreetSaver)

 Updated Total 
Cost District P Mileage Current  

PCI Last M&R 
Date

Last Paved

2023 729042 65 BANCROFT WAY SHATTUCK AVE FULTON ST C Heavy Rehab 341,126$       4 4* 0.09 41 8/7/1997 MILL AND OVERLAY W/FABRIC
2023 729042 60 BANCROFT WAY MILVIA WAY SHATTUCK AVE C Heavy Rehab 418,348$       4 4* 0.13 34 12/1/1989 MILL AND OVERLAY W/FABRIC
2023 728042 76 BANCROFT WAY TELEGRAPH AVE BOWDITCH ST C Heavy Mtce 133,325$       7 4* 0.13 63 12/1/1990 MILL AND OVERLAY W/FABRIC
2023 628042 78 BANCROFT WAY BOWDITCH ST COLLEGE AVE C Heavy Mtce 161,036$       7 3C* 0.13 56 12/1/1990 MILL AND OVERLAY W/FABRIC
2023 627042 80 BANCROFT WAY COLLEGE AVE PIEDMONT AVE C Heavy Rehab 254,076$       7 3C* 0.13 28 12/1/1990 MILL AND OVERLAY W/FABRIC
2023 728140 50 DANA ST BANCROFT WAY DWIGHT WAY R Heavy Rehab 458,900$       7 2A to 2B* 0.25 45 12/1/1989 MILL AND OVERLAY W/FABRIC
2023 736140 60 DANA ST DWIGHT WAY BLAKE ST R Light Rehab 91,440$         7 3E 0.06 44 12/1/1989 MILL AND OVERLAY W/FABRIC
2023 736140 65 DANA ST BLAKE ST WARD ST R Light Rehab 466,580$       7 3E* 0.25 65 7/30/2008 RECONSTRUCT STRUCTURE (AC)
2023* 627155 85 DWIGHT WAY HILLSIDE AVE DEAD END ABOVE  R Reconstruct 387,040$       8 N 0.11 22 9/1/1993 RECONSTRUCT SURFACE (AC)
2023* 627155 83 DWIGHT WAY PIEDMONT AVE HILLSIDE AVE R Reconstruct 501,840$       7, 8 N 0.14 12 9/1/1993 MILL AND OVERLAY W/FABRIC
2023* 637217 80 FOREST AVE COLLEGE AVE CLAREMONT BLVD R Heavy Rehab 618,000$       8 N 0.36 45 8/1/1996 RECONSTRUCT STRUCTURE (AC)
2023 835431 65 OTIS ST RUSSELL ST ASHBY AVE R Heavy Rehab 224,000$       3 N 0.13 49 4/1/2001 RECONSTRUCT STRUCTURE (AC)
2023 728584 50 TELEGRAPH AVE BANCROFT WAY DWIGHT WAY C Heavy Rehab 473,060$       7 3C* 0.25 39 7/1/1988 MILL AND OVERLAY W/FABRIC
2023 319293 47 HOPKINS ST GILMAN ST SACRAMENTO ST R Heavy Rehab 233,942$       5 3A, C 0.10 32 9/13/2002 MILL AND OVERLAY W/FABRIC
2023 213293 50 HOPKINS ST HOPKINS CT MONTEREY AVE C Light Rehab 87,193$         5 3A, C 0.05 59 9/13/2002 MILL AND OVERLAY W/FABRIC
2023 213293 52 HOPKINS ST MONTEREY AVE MC GEE AVE C Heavy Rehab 119,167$       5 2A, C 0.05 47 12/1/1989 RECONSTRUCT STRUCTURE (AC)
2023 319293 45 HOPKINS ST NORTHSIDE AVE PERALTA AVE R Light Mtce 239,587$       1 N 0.10 78 9/13/2002 MILL AND OVERLAY W/FABRIC
2023 319293 46 HOPKINS ST PERALTA AVE GILMAN ST R Heavy Mtce 493,031$       1, 5 N 0.27 58 9/13/2002 MILL AND OVERLAY W/FABRIC
2023 319293 49 HOPKINS ST SACRAMENTO ST HOPKINS CT A Heavy Rehab 101,755$       5 3A, C 0.04 38 9/13/2002 MILL AND OVERLAY W/FABRIC
2023 319293 40 HOPKINS ST SAN PABLO AVE STANNAGE AVE R Light Mtce 37,188$         1 N 0.09 74 9/13/2002 MILL AND OVERLAY W/FABRIC
2023 319293 42 HOPKINS ST STANNAGE AVE NORTHSIDE AVE R Heavy Mtce 181,658$       1 N 0.17 69 9/13/2002 MILL AND OVERLAY W/FABRIC
2023 CONTINGENCY 1,253,011$    

TOTAL FUNDING 7,275,303$    3.04
46% bike/ped 
55% bike/ped not incl contingency

* in Fiscal Year column denotes coordination and/or cost sharing with EBMUD project

FISCAL YEAR 2023 TOTALS

Total Estimated Cost and Miles $7,275,303 3.04 miles

Mileage Estimated Cost % Cost % Mileage District Cost Miles
Arterials 0.04 $101,755 2% 1% 1 $704,948 0.51
Collectors 0.95 $1,987,331 33% 31% 2 $0 0.00
Residentials 2.05 $3,933,206 65% 67% 3 $224,000 0.13

4 $759,474 0.23
Bikeways 1.34 $3,339,948 55% 44% 5 $788,573 0.37
Curb Ramps $240,000 4% 6 $0 0.00
Total $3,579,948 59% 7 $2,289,337 1.27

8 $1,255,960 0.54
$6,022,292 3.04

Note: Column P denotes presence of bike facility type (1 paved path, 2A 2B bike lane, 3A sign-only, 3C Sharrows, 3E bike blvd, 4 cycle track); C for bus route; and N for none.

*Proposed bike facilities from 2017 Bike Plan. Draft 5-Year Street Rehabilitation Plan FY 2021-2025_v14.xlsx

Page 13 of 16

43



EXHIBIT A
5-YEAR STREET REHABILITATION PLAN FOR FY 2021 TO FY 2025

Revised: 10/30/2020

Fiscal 
Year Street ID Section ID Street Name From To Class

Treatment 
(from 

StreetSaver)

 Updated Total 
Cost District P Mileage Current  

PCI Last M&R 
Date

Last Paved

2024 830104 57 CHANNING WAY ROOSEVELT AVE MARTIN LUTHER KING  R Reconstruct 695,500$       4 3E 0.19 1 9/1/1991 MILL AND OVERLAY W/FABRIC
2024 830104 50 CHANNING WAY SACRAMENTO ST ROOSEVELT AVE R Heavy Rehab 696,780$       4 3E 0.31 22 9/1/1991 MILL AND OVERLAY W/FABRIC
2024 111127 10 CRESTON RD GRIZZLY PEAK BLVD SUNSET LANE R Heavy Mtce 93,378$         6 N 0.36 63 6/1/1995 RECONSTRUCT STRUCTURE (AC)
2024 115127 20 CRESTON RD SUNSET LANE GRIZZLY PEAK BLVD R Heavy Mtce 116,258$       6 N 0.36 64 11/1/1988 RECONSTRUCT SURFACE (AC)
2024 322142 48 DELAWARE ST ACTON ST SACRAMENTO ST C Heavy Mtce 108,175$       1 4* 0.13 61 10/1/1992 MILL AND OVERLAY W/FABRIC
2024 636146 78 DERBY ST HILLEGASS AVE COLLEGE AVE R Reconstruct 577,560$       8 3E* 0.14 25 8/8/1997 MILL AND OVERLAY W/FABRIC
2024 729152 60 DURANT AVE MILVIA ST SHATTUCK AVE C Reconstruct 693,355$       4 N 0.13 11 11/1/1992 MILL AND OVERLAY W/FABRIC
2024 111249 17 GRIZZLY PEAK BLVD KEELER AVE MARIN AVE C Reconstruct 859,622$       6 3C* 0.27 19 10/1/1992 MILL AND OVERLAY W/FABRIC
2024 739285 70 HILLEGASS AVE ASHBY AVE CITY LIMIT (WOOLSEY  R Light Mtce 98,900$         8 3E 0.16 76 7/28/2003 RECONSTRUCT STRUCTURE (AC)
2024 736285 60 HILLEGASS AVE DWIGHT WAY ASHBY AVE R Light Mtce 312,000$       8 3E 0.61 78 5/31/2000 RECONSTRUCT STRUCTURE (AC)
2024 213293 53 HOPKINS ST MC GEE AVE CARLOTTA AVE C Heavy Rehab 149,680$       5 2A, C 0.06 45 12/1/1989 RECONSTRUCT STRUCTURE (AC)
2024 213293 55 HOPKINS ST CARLOTTA AVE JOSEPHINE ST C Heavy Rehab 874,580$       5 2A, C 0.35 50 12/1/1989 MILL AND OVERLAY
2024 115344 80 LATHAM LANE MILLER AVE GRIZZLY PEAK R Heavy Mtce 38,500$         6 N 0.10 59 6/1/1994 RECONSTRUCT STRUCTURE (AC)
2024 834371 65 MC GEE AVE DERBY ST RUSSELL ST R Light Rehab 551,992$       3 N 0.25 59 12/10/1998 RECONSTRUCT STRUCTURE (AC)
2024 834371 60 MC GEE AVE DWIGHT WAY DERBY ST R Light Rehab 374,400$       3 N 0.26 51 7/1/1988 THIN OVERLAY w/FABRIC
2024 115380 70 MILLER AVE HILLDALE AVE SHASTA RD R Light Rehab 449,880$       6 N 0.66 53 6/1/1994 RECONSTRUCT STRUCTURE (AC)
2024 CONTINGENCY 584,743$       

TOTAL FUNDING 7,275,303$    4.35
60% bike/ped 
65% bike/ped not incl contingency

FISCAL YEAR 2024 TOTALS

Total Estimated Cost and Miles $7,275,303 4.35 miles

Mileage Estimated Cost % Cost % Mileage District Cost Miles
Arterials 0.00 $0 0% 0% 1 $108,175 0.13
Collectors 0.94 $2,685,412 40% 22% 2 $0 0.00
Residentials 3.41 $4,005,148 60% 78% 3 $926,392 0.51

4 $2,085,635 0.63
Bikeways 2.21 $4,372,797 65% 51% 5 $1,024,260 0.41
Curb Ramps $474,000 7% 6 $1,557,638 1.76
Total $4,846,797 72% 7 $0 0.00

8 $988,460 0.91
$6,690,560 4.35

Note: Column P denotes presence of bike facility type (1 paved path, 2A 2B bike lane, 3A sign-only, 3C Sharrows, 3E bike blvd, 4 cycle track); C for bus route; and N for none.

*Proposed bike facilities from 2017 Bike Plan. Draft 5-Year Street Rehabilitation Plan FY 2021-2025_v14.xlsx

Page 14 of 16

44



EXHIBIT A
5-YEAR STREET REHABILITATION PLAN FOR FY 2021 TO FY 2025

Revised: 10/30/2020

Fiscal 
Year Street ID Section ID Street Name From To Class

Treatment 
(from 

StreetSaver)

 Updated Total 
Cost District P Mileage Current  

PCI Last M&R 
Date

Last Paved

2025 729014 63 ALLSTON WAY MILVIA ST SHATTUCK AVE R Heavy Rehab 228,800$       4 N 0.14 37 11/1/1990 MILL AND THIN OVERLAY
2025 931129 50 CURTIS ST UNIVERSITY AVE DWIGHT WAY R Reconstruct 2,009,440$    2 N 0.57 9 8/18/1997 MILL AND THICK OVERLAY
2025 834146 50 DERBY ST SACRAMENTO ST MARTIN LUTHER KING R Reconstruct 1,688,560$    3 3E 0.48 18 10/1/1992 MILL AND OVERLAY W/FABRIC
2025 736146 70 DERBY ST FULTON ST TELEGRAPH AVE R Reconstruct 1,069,280$    3, 7 3E 0.31 13 10/1/1992 MILL AND OVERLAY W/FABRIC
2025 319241 40 GILMAN ST SAN PABLO AVE SANTA FE AVE A Heavy Rehab 683,116$       1 4* 0.27 48 10/2007 MILL AND OVERLAY
2025 111249 15 GRIZZLY PEAK BLVD EUCLID AVE KEELER AVE C Reconstruct 634,478$       6 3E 0.21 13 11/1/1990 MILL AND THICK OVERLAY
2025 639671 78 WOOLSEY ST HILLEGASS AVE COLLEGE AVE R Reconstruct 434,534$       8 3A 0.11 13 NA

CONTINGENCY 527,095$       
TOTAL FUNDING 7,275,303$    2.08

62% bike/ped 
67% bike/ped not incl contingency

FISCAL YEAR 2025 TOTALS

Total Estimated Cost and Miles $7,275,303 2.08 miles

Mileage Estimated Cost % Cost % Mileage District Cost Miles
Arterials 0.27 $683,116 10% 13% 1 $683,116 0.27
Collectors 0.21 $634,478 9% 10% 2 $2,009,440 0.57
Residentials 1.60 $5,430,614 80% 77% 3 $2,223,200 0.63

4 $228,800 0.14
Bikeways 1.38 $4,509,968 67% 66% 5 $0 0.00
Curb Ramps $126,000 2% 6 $634,478 0.21
Total $4,635,968 69% 7 $534,640 0.15

8 $434,534 0.11
$6,748,208 2.08

FISCAL YEAR 2021-2025 TOTALS

Total Estimated Cost and Miles $33,540,515 14.98 miles

Mileage Estimated Cost % Cost % Mileage District Cost Miles
Arterials 0.31 $784,871 3% 2% 1 $4,046,266 1.69
Collectors 2.88 $7,095,005 24% 19% 2 $4,590,248 1.73
Residentials 11.79 $22,212,176 74% 79% 3 $4,620,579 2.38

4 $4,073,349 1.36
Bikeways 7.01 $16,411,779 55% 47% 5 $3,911,654 1.68
Curb Ramps $1,338,000 4% 6 $2,382,033 2.06
Total $17,749,779 59% 7 $3,576,655 2.39

8 $2,891,269 1.70
$30,092,053 14.98

Total Funding $33,540,515

Note: Column P denotes presence of bike facility type (1 paved path, 2A 2B bike lane, 3A sign-only, 3C Sharrows, 3E bike blvd, 4 cycle track); C for bus route; and N for none.

*Proposed bike facilities from 2017 Bike Plan. Draft 5-Year Street Rehabilitation Plan FY 2021-2025_v14.xlsx

Page 15 of 16

45



Page 16 of 16

46



Rashi Kesarwani
Councilmember District 1      

CONSENT CALENDAR
     January 26, 2021

(Continued from November 10, 2020)

TO: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

FROM: Councilmember Rashi Kesarwani (author), Mayor Jesse Arreguin and
Councilmember Cheryl Davila (co-sponsors)

SUBJECT: Budget Referral to Reinstate Partial Funding for the Gun Buyback 
      Program Previously Authorized by City Council

RECOMMENDATION
Refer to the FY 2020-21 November Amendment to the Annual Appropriations 
Ordinance (AAO #1) $40,000 to reinstate partial funding for the Gun Buyback 
Program—originally proposed by Councilmember Cheryl Davila and authorized by the 
City Council on Nov. 27, 2018.

FISCAL IMPACTS
Funding of $40,000 would enable the City of Berkeley to: remove guns from households 
by providing cash or gift cards to owners of operational rifles and shotguns (value of 
approximately $100) and to owners of operational handguns and assault weapons 
(value of approximately $200); and cover staff time necessary to support a gun buyback 
program. 

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS
Gun violence in Berkeley is on the rise, following regional and national trends.1 
According to Berkeleyside, the City of Berkeley saw 20 shootings in 2018, 28 shootings 
in 2019, and 32 shootings so far in 2020 with more than two months remaining in the 
year.2 As a result of this violence, our community has lost four individuals from fatal 
shootings and at least 10 others have been wounded. Prior to this year, the last fatal 

1 “Shootings and Gun Deaths Continue To Rise At Alarming Rate In Large U.S. Cities,” Aug. 2, 2020, 
Forbes, https://www.forbes.com/sites/tommybeer/2020/08/02/shootings-and-gun-deaths-continue-to-rise-
at-alarming-rate-in-large-us-cities/#234142966f0f.
2  “Annual crime report sees shootings rise for the third straight year,” Oct. 15, 2020, Berkeleyside, 
https://www.berkeleyside.com/2020/10/15/2020-berkeley-crime-report-shootings-rise-use-of-force-stop-
data?doing_wp_cron=1603673460.1734480857849121093750.

Page 1 of 26

47

https://www.forbes.com/sites/tommybeer/2020/08/02/shootings-and-gun-deaths-continue-to-rise-at-alarming-rate-in-large-us-cities/#234142966f0f
https://www.forbes.com/sites/tommybeer/2020/08/02/shootings-and-gun-deaths-continue-to-rise-at-alarming-rate-in-large-us-cities/#234142966f0f
rthomsen
Typewritten Text
02a.10



Budget Referral to Reinstate Partial Funding for Gun Buyback Program

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 ● Tel: (510) 981-7110  ● Fax: (510) 981-7111
 E-Mail: Rkesarwani@cityofberkeley.info

shooting occurred in 2016, when 22-year-old Alex Goodwin Jr. was killed outside his 
home near San Pablo Park.3 

Gun buybacks are programs aimed at voluntarily decreasing the prevalence of firearms 
in a community by offering cash or gift cards in exchange for working guns. A meta-
analysis from Dec. 2019 in Current Trauma Reports suggests that gun buybacks should 
be included in broader violence reduction strategies. “Buybacks in conjunction with 
other methods have been shown to be successful in reducing the number of firearms 
that could lead to injury and death,” the authors write.4 Further, according to current 
academic research, gun buybacks “can influence public perception of how authorities 
are dealing with gun violence and serve as opportunities to educate communities about 
gun violence reduction strategies.” 5A gun buyback program can be a piece of our 
communal effort to reimagine public safety. 

BACKGROUND
Councilmember Cheryl Davila submitted the original referral to fund a gun buyback 
program to our Annual Appropriations Ordinance Process in Nov. 2018, which was 
approved on consent (see attachment A). An integral part of this initial Council item 
referenced a partnership between Berkeley Police Department and a non-profit, the 
Robby Poblete Foundation (RPF). Given that gun violence has been responsible for 
four deaths in the last ten months alone, this item recommends reinstating funding for a 
gun buyback program. According to the RPF website, 190 firearms were removed from 
the City of Richmond during a gun buyback event; and 900 were removed from San 
Francisco during a gun buyback held in June 2018.6  

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY
No direct impact on environmental sustainability. 

CONTACT
Councilmember Rashi Kesarwani, District 1        (510) 981-7110

Attachments:
A: Item #22 “Budget Referral: Gun Buyback Program and Art of Peace 

                Program

3 The 2020 Berkeley gunfire map, Updated Oct. 23, Berkeleyside, 
https://www.berkeleyside.com/2020/10/03/2020-berkeley-gunfire-map.
4 A Review of Gun Buybacks,” Nov. 1, 2019, Current Trauma Reports, 
https://link.springer.com/article/10.1007/s40719-019-00180-8.
5 “Gun buybacks: What the research says,” Jan. 9, 2020, Harvard Kennedy School Shorenstein Center 
on Media, Politics and Public Policy, https://journalistsresource.org/studies/gun-violence/gun-buybacks-
what-the-research-says/.
6 RPF Gun Buyback Program, http://robbypobletefoundation.org/rpf-gun-buyback-program/.

Page 2 of 26

48

https://www.berkeleyside.com/tag/alex-goodwin-jr
https://www.berkeleyside.com/2020/10/03/2020-berkeley-gunfire-map
https://link.springer.com/article/10.1007/s40719-019-00180-8
https://journalistsresource.org/studies/gun-violence/gun-buybacks-what-the-research-says/
https://journalistsresource.org/studies/gun-violence/gun-buybacks-what-the-research-says/


Cheryl Davila
Councilmember 
District 2    

CONSENT CALENDAR
November 27, 2018

To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 
From:         Councilmember Cheryl Davila
Subject:    Budget Referral: Gun Buyback and Art of Peace Program

RECOMMENDATION
AAO Budget Referral to the FY19 (2018/2019) November 2018 AAO Budget Process to 
set aside $60,000 to frontload funds to bring the Robby Poblete Foundation Gun 
Buyback, Art of Peace and Work in Progress programs to Berkeley.

The Robby Poblete Foundation coordinates all aspects of the programs, including 
promotional materials, promotion on platforms and local calendars, press releases, 
press conferences and media contacts, coordinating the buyback with the police 
department, purchasing and release of gift cards, breaking down the guns free of 
charge (if desired), recruiting artists, coordinating the artist competition and selection 
process, coordinating the Art of Peace unveiling and event, and connecting youth and 
families with apprenticeships,  job training and placement programs. 

The Robby Poblete Foundation will also partner with the City of Berkeley to reach out to 
foundations, local businesses and individual donors to cover the costs of the program, 
including the gift cards. All efforts will be made to fundraise and refund the full $60,000. 

The City of Berkeley needs to provide the following: 

 Police time to coordinate the gun buyback with the Foundation, the day-of to 
accept, record and check firearms to ensure that none of those accepted are 
stolen and to staff the event to ensure safety, as well as transport and storage of 
guns until they are shipped for breakdown. 

 Front-loading the $60,000 to cover an estimated 400 firearms at $100 and $200 
per a buyback. This estimate is based on Berkeley’s centrality, timing since the 
last buyback in the area and recent buyback programs. Any funds not used will 
be returned to the City. If additional funds are needed, the Foundation covers the 
cost and works to apply for additional funds. We do not want to turn guns away. 

 Participation: promoting programs and events, identifying businesses for the 
Foundation to approach, recruiting and selecting artists, and participating in 
public and media events. 

Page 1 of 24Page 3 of 26

49

rthomsen
Typewritten Text
22



FISCAL IMPACTS OF RECOMMENDATION
$60,000 for a contract with a community youth provider. Staff time creating and 
reviewing RFP applications, and creating and monitoring the contract. 

BACKGROUND
The Robby Poblete Foundation is a registered 501©(3) nonprofit organization whose 
mission is to reduce gun violence by collecting unwanted firearms through gun 
buybacks, and transform them into instruments of hope and opportunity through art and 
vocational skills programs. 

Pati Navalta started the program after she lost her son to gun violence four-years ago. 
From this tragedy she started the Foundation to stop gun violence and is supporting 
work across the Bay Area, and Los Angeles and Georgia in replicating the program. 
The gun buyback program has been implemented in Richmond, Vallejo, San Francisco 
and Oakland. 

The program has collected over 1,000 firearms, including handguns, rifles and assault 
weapons. In addition, they have collected boxes of stars, rocket launchers and knives. 
By providing gift cards from local businesses, they are getting firearms off of the streets 
while supporting the local economy. The gun buyback events include free gun locks, 
too.

The guns are then broken down and given back to the community to create public art. A 
design competition is promoted and community artists submit proposals that are 
reviewed by a community panel. Selected artists use the broken down gun parts and 
shells to create Art of Peace. The art work is then unveiled during a community event 
and visited by schools and programs to raise awareness toward violence prevention. 
Young people who are interested can then participate in the Work in Progress program 
that works with 5 apprenticeship programs to train young people including their family 
members, including people who are formerly incarcerated and homeless, in a trade and 
then place them in employment with life and job coaching support. 

Councilmember Davila’s office, the Berkeley Police Department and City Manager’s 
office attended a presentation from the Robby Poblete Foundation, and all shared 
interest in and support for all three programs for Berkeley. 

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY
The program not only removes guns from the street and community that can be used to 
harm, but creates public awareness about how communities can participate in gun 
violence prevention. It creates a culture of hope and possibility to counter the despair 
and culture of violence that leads to gun-related deaths and injuries. 

CONTACT PERSON
Councilmember Cheryl Davila    510.981.7120

ATTACHMENTS
 Robby Poblete Foundation overview PowerPoint

Page 2 of 24Page 4 of 26

50



Transforming unwanted firearms into instruments of hope and opportunity

Overview

Page 3 of 24Page 5 of 26

51



Who We Are

© The Robby Poblete Foundation 2018

The Robby Poblete Foundation is a registered 
501©(3) nonprofit organization whose mission is 
to reduce gun violence by collecting unwanted 
firearms through gun buybacks, and transform 
them into instruments of hope and opportunity 
through art and vocational skills programs.

Page 4 of 24Page 6 of 26

52



Our Programs

© The Robby Poblete Foundation 2018

• Annual Gun Buyback: Prevent unwanted 
firearms from falling into the wrong hands by 
holding gun buybacks

• Work In Progress:  Work with local unions, 
businesses and county office of education and 
correctional facilities to raise awareness about 
opportunities in skilled trades, provide 
introductory training programs, and help with 
apprenticeships, certifications and job 
placement. Focused on youth, young adults and 
ex offenders.

• Art of Peace: Transform unwanted firearms into 
instruments of hope and opportunity

Page 5 of 24Page 7 of 26

53



Gun Buyback

Page 6 of 24Page 8 of 26

54



Gun Buyback

© The Robby Poblete Foundation 2018

180 firearms:
66 handguns
111 rifles
3 assault 
weapons

115 firearms:
44 long guns
70 handguns
1 assault 
weapon

Page 7 of 24Page 9 of 26

55



Gun Buyback

© The Robby Poblete Foundation 2018

48 firearms:
14 rifles
6 shotguns
15 semi-auto 
pistols
13 revolvers

51 firearms:
13 shotguns
7 pistols
8 assault 
weapons
10 rifles
13 revolvers

Page 8 of 24Page 10 of 26

56



Gun Buyback

© The Robby Poblete Foundation 2018

187 firearms

Page 9 of 24Page 11 of 26

57



Solano County Gun Buyback

© The Robby Poblete Foundation 2018

Page 10 of 24Page 12 of 26

58



• Transforming unwanted firearms into instruments of hope and opportunity

Page 11 of 24Page 13 of 26

59



Process

© The Robby Poblete Foundation 2018

- Gun Buyback, August 26, 2017- Founded: February 2017 - Planning meeting: April 27 - Call for Entry: June

- Gun materials: October 1 Artist pick-up: January 2018 Art of Peace unveiling: May 11, 2018

Page 12 of 24Page 14 of 26

60



Art of Peace Commissioned Art

© The Robby Poblete Foundation 2018

Robby’s Arc, John Ton Blue Heron, Joel Stockdill Simorgh, Keyvan Shovir

Page 13 of 24Page 15 of 26

61



© The Robby Poblete Foundation 2018

Art of Peace Commissioned Art

Boarapillar, Karen Lewis

Home, Sweet Home, Tsungwei Moo

Page 14 of 24Page 16 of 26

62



© The Robby Poblete Foundation 2018

Art of Peace Commissioned Art

Floor Mandala, Matthew Mosher

Memorial Pillar, Kaytea Petro

Page 15 of 24Page 17 of 26

63



© The Robby Poblete Foundation 2018

Art of Peace Commissioned Art

Wave of Violence, Jean Cherie

Page 16 of 24Page 18 of 26

64



© The Robby Poblete Foundation 2018

Art of Peace: Scale

Bay Area (Secured):
 Vallejo 
 Alameda County 

(Oakland)
 Richmond (Contra 

Costa County)
 San Francisco

Requests from:
 Los Angeles 
 Atlanta, Augusta, 

Georgia

Page 17 of 24Page 19 of 26

65



© The Robby Poblete Foundation 2018

Art of Peace: Alameda
Page 18 of 24Page 20 of 26

66



Media Coverage

© The Robby Poblete Foundation 2017

Page 19 of 24Page 21 of 26

67



Work In Progress

Page 20 of 24Page 22 of 26

68



Apprenticeship Bus Tour

© The Robby Poblete Foundation 2018

September 29, 2017: 150 students, 5 apprenticeship centers in county

Page 21 of 24Page 23 of 26

69



Work In Progress

© The Robby Poblete Foundation 2018

Women In Trades, Solano County, Feb. 9, 2018 

Hands-On Career Fair, Solano County, April 20, 2018 

Women In Trades, Contra Costa County, October 19, 2018 

Page 22 of 24Page 24 of 26

70



Work In Progress: Scholarships

© The Robby Poblete Foundation 2018

Apprenticeships and 
training programs

Outreach

$20,000+ in 
scholarships - to 
date

Page 23 of 24Page 25 of 26

71



Thank you

For more information, please go to robbypobletefoundation.org or email 
info@robbypobletefoundation.org

Page 24 of 24Page 26 of 26

72



Cheryl Davila
Councilmember 
District 2  

ACTION CALENDAR
January 26, 2021

(Continued from November 10, 2020)

To:   Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

From:   Councilmember Cheryl Davila 

Subject: Support Community Refrigerators

RECOMMENDATION
1. Adopt a Resolution to create an allocation of the homeless budget towards the 

purchasing of community refrigerators to be distributed in Council districts to provide 
access to food for those who have no refrigeration or may be food insecure. 

2. Allocate $8,000 of the budget for the purchasing of the refrigerators.

RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION
The City of Berkeley spent $6.5 million of the general fund to combat homelessness in 2019. 
The COVID-19 pandemic, the raging fires and smoke in the state of California, the unhoused 
community is being hit even harder. The economic challenges of businesses closing, financial 
strains and health concerns increasing leads to increased disparities. It is necessary to support 
our communities who cannot buy basic necessities for survival such as food. A district fridge 
would bring together our communities to aid the homeless. Moreover, this is a part of a larger 
goal to bridge financial inequities in the City of Berkeley.

BACKGROUND
The City of Berkeley spent close to $20 million on providing homeless services. About $6.5 
million came from its general fund, about $9.5 million came from regional, state, and federal 
funds and $3.9 million were one-time funds from the state’s Homeless Emergency Aid Program.

COVID-19 has strained access to money and resources such as food for our homeless 
communities. The fires and dangerous air quality have also created a need for cooled water. 
Health disparities increase in times of distress and hit our at-risk communities the hardest.

Implementing an accessible refrigerator program, run by each district and its neighborhoods is a 
step in the right direction. Several cities across the country such as Los Angeles, Oakland, and 
New York have already created community fridges. Businesses, organizations, and individuals 
work together to keep the fridges stocked with prepackaged meals, leftovers, fresh fruits and 
vegetables, water, and other drinks. Anyone who feels the need to can take anything they need, 
at any time of day. 

Page 1 of 8

73

rthomsen
Typewritten Text
02a.13



This is essential now. Food insecurity is an issue that ravages homeless communities. Yet, in 
some cities, we dump more than one million tons of food into landfills . Many community fridges 
are located in areas with high levels of food insecurity, either in “food deserts” (neighborhoods 

that lack access to fresh, affordable food) or “food swamps” (neighborhoods where there is an 
overabundance of fast food).

In the City of Oakland, the community group “Town Fridge” has set up refrigerators in publicly 
accessible locations throughout Oakland. The purpose is to create a mutual aid to address food 
insecurities in the community. These community refrigerators have donation guidelines posted 
at their locations, where they accept produce, pantry staples, bottled water, prepared meals but 
forbid raw meat. They also require: label and dates of all perishables on food containers; placing 
non-perishables on the shelving outside the fridge; If a fridge is full, they ask donors to not leave 
the food outside the fridge, but donate the food to a nearby encampment. Many locations have 
outside shelving for placement of non perishable items. 
Residents can also apply to be a “fridge host”, hosting a community refrigerator on their block. 
Since this program has been established, it is a model for other cities to implement.

Community fridges will allow 24/7 access to fresh foods to the public, while empowering people 
of our community.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
The estimated price of a low-cost fridge is approximately $800. Purchasing one for each district 
of Berkeley amounts to approximately $8,000 allocated from the budget. 

This program can be at no cost to the City as residents replace their refrigerators with newer 
technology refrigerators, and can donate their old refrigerators to be used as Community 
Refrigerators.

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY
Protecting our communities during this climate and health crisis is an act of environmental 
sustainability.

CONTACT PERSONS
Cheryl Davila
Councilmember District 2                                                                                      
510.981.7120
cdavila@cityofberkeley.info

Sanjita Pamidimukkala
Eshal Sandhu
District 2 Intern

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Resolution
2. Four Pictures from Deputy City Manager Paul Buddenhagen of Community Fridge at 

59th and Marshall

REFERENCES:
1. Oakland Town Fridge https://linktr.ee/townfridge

Page 2 of 8

74

mailto:cdavila@cityofberkeley.info
https://linktr.ee/townfridge


Page 3 of 8

75



Page 4 of 8

76



Page 5 of 8

77



Page 6 of 8

78



RESOLUTION NO. ##,###-N.S.

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BERKELEY, CALIFORNIA, 
PROVIDING OUR HOUSELESSNESS COMMUNITY WITH DISTRICT REFRIGERATORS

WHEREAS, The City of Berkeley spent close to $20 million on providing homeless services. 
About $6.5 million came from its general fund, about $9.5 million came from regional, state, and 
federal funds and $3.9 million were one-time funds from the state’s Homeless Emergency Aid 
Program; and

WHEREAS, COVID-19 has strained access to money and resources such as food for our 
homeless communities. The fires and dangerous air quality have also created a need for cooled 
water. Health disparities increase in times of distress and hit our at-risk communities the 
hardest; and

WHEREAS, Implementing an accessible refrigerator program, run by each district and its 
neighborhoods is a step in the right direction. Several cities across the country such as Los 
Angeles, Oakland, and New York have already created community fridges. Businesses, 
organizations, and individuals work together to keep the fridges stocked with prepackaged 
meals, leftovers, fresh fruits and vegetables, water, and other drinks. Anyone who feels the 
need to can take anything they need, at any time of day; and

WHEREAS, This is essential now. Food insecurity is an issue that ravages homeless 
communities. Yet, in some cities, we dump more than one million tons of food into landfills . 
Many community fridges are located in areas with high levels of food insecurity, either in “food 

deserts” (neighborhoods that lack access to fresh, affordable food) or “food swamps” 
(neighborhoods where there is an overabundance of fast food); and

WHEREAS, In the City of Oakland, the community group “Town Fridge” has set up refrigerators 
in publicly accessible locations throughout Oakland. The purpose is to create a mutual aid to 
address food insecurities in the community. These community refrigerators have donation 
guidelines posted at their locations, where they accept produce, pantry staples, bottled water, 
prepared meals but forbid raw meat. They also require: label and dates of all perishables on 
food containers; placing non-perishables on the shelving outside the fridge; If a fridge is full, 
they ask donors to not leave the food outside the fridge, but donate the food to a nearby 
encampment. Many locations have outside shelving for placement of non perishable items. 
Residents can also apply to be a “fridge host”, hosting a community refrigerator on their block. 
Since this program has been established, it is a model for other cities to implement; and

WHEREAS, Community fridges will allow 24/7 access to fresh foods to the public, while 
empowering people of our community; and

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Berkeley, California 
supports not only the implementation of district fridges to reduce the amount of food insecurity 
in the homeless community, but also the reduction of financial inequities in our city. 
Specifically, the Council of the City of Berkeley calls for:

Page 7 of 8

79



1. Create an allocation of the homeless budget towards the purchasing of community 
refrigerators to be distributed in Council districts to provide access to food for those who have 
no refrigeration or may be food insecure.

2. Allocate $8,000 of the budget for the purchasing of the refrigerators.

Page 8 of 8

80



Fair Campaign Practices Commission
Open Government Commission

           ACTION CALENDAR 
 January 26, 2021

To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

From: Brad Smith, Chair, Fair Campaign Practices and Open Government 
Commissions

Submitted by: Samuel Harvey, Secretary, Fair Campaign Practices
and Open Government Commissions

Subject: Amendments to the Berkeley Election Reform Act (BERA) and Change 
to City Council Expenditure and Reimbursement Policies (Resolution 
67,992-N.S.)

RECOMMENDATION
Form a joint subcommittee of members of the City Council and members of the Fair 
Campaign Practices and Open Government Commissions to (1) prepare an ordinance 
amending the Berkeley Election Reform Act (BMC Chapter 2.12) to prohibit or regulate 
officeholder accounts and (2) prepare a change in City Council Expenditure and 
Reimbursement policies (Resolution 67,992-N.S.) to have donations to nonprofit 
organizations made in the name of the entire Berkeley City Council on behalf of the citizens 
of Berkeley rather than from individual Council members.

FISCAL IMPACTS OF RECOMMENDATION
None.

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS
Officeholder accounts are not expressly regulated by BERA. However, under existing law, if 
funds for officeholder accounts are used for campaign purposes, this may implicate campaign 
financing law and may trigger various local and state legal requirements.

Donations to nonprofit organizations from Councilmember’s discretionary council budgets 
(D-13 accounts) are allowed by the authority of City Council Expenditure and Reimbursement 
policies (Resolution 67,992-N.S.).

Page 1 of 28

81

rthomsen
Typewritten Text
02a.15



Action: Motion to submit report to City Council recommending creation of a subcommittee of 
members of the Council, FCPC and OGC to (1) prepare an ordinance prohibiting or regulating 
officeholder accounts and (2) prepare a change in City Council Expenditure and 
Reimbursement policies 

Vote: M/S/C: Blome/Metzger; Ayes: O’Donnell, Ching, Blome, Tsang, Smith; Noes: Metzger, 
Sheahan; Abstain: none; Absent: McLean.

Pursuant to Berkeley Municipal Code Section 2.12.051, BERA may be amended by the 
“double green light” process. This process requires that the FCPC adopt the amendments by 
a two-thirds vote, and the City Council hold a public hearing and adopt the amendments by a 
two-thirds vote.

Changes to the City Council Expenditure and Reimbursement policies (Resolution 67,992-
N.S.) can be made by a majority vote of the Council.

BACKGROUND

Officeholder Accounts
During 2019, the Fair Campaign Practices Commission (FCPC) discussed whether there is a 
need to amend the law relating to these accounts. These accounts are not expressly 
regulated by BERA, but under current law, if funds for officeholder accounts are used for 
campaign purposes, this may implicate campaign financing law and trigger various local and 
state legal requirements. A 1999 legal opinion from the City Attorney stated: “[t]he mere fact 
that an account may be designated an officeholder account does not insulate it from scrutiny 
under BERA or other applicable local law if the officeholder account is not used strictly for 
officeholder purposes or if some action taken with respect to the officeholder account 
implicates campaign contributions and expenditures or other applicable laws.”

In the course of its review of the issue of officeholder accounts, the FCPC considered three 
options: 
(1)  leaving the law on officeholder accounts unchanged;
(2) prohibiting officeholder accounts entirely (an approach used by the City of San Jose), or 
(3) authorizing officeholder accounts but limiting their use and imposing various restrictions 
and requirements on them (an approach used by the City of Oakland).

The Commission referred the issue of officeholder accounts to a subcommittee, which met 
several times in the fall of 2019 and considered the options. The subcommittee unanimously 
recommended prohibiting officeholder accounts entirely. At its regular meeting on 
November 21, 2019 the Commission voted without opposition to recommend amendments 
to the BERA that would prohibit officeholder accounts.

The Commission’s proposal was presented to the City Council at a February 4, 2020 special 
meeting. (Report to the Council, with Attachments, is attached.) The FCPC report 
summarized its proposal: “Contributions to and expenditures from Officeholder Accounts 
provide an unfair advantage to incumbents. They also increase the reliance on private 
campaign contributions and risk increasing the perception of corruption. Amending the 
Berkeley Election Reform Act to prohibit Officeholder Accounts will help to level the playing 
field in municipal elections, which was also the goal of the Fair Elections Act of 2016.” 
(Report, page 1.)

Page 2 of 28

82



At the February 4, 2020 meeting, the Council had a lengthy discussion about their D- 13 
accounts and the lack of discretionary funds that members have to spend. They also decided 
not to approve the FCPC recommendation to prohibit officeholder accounts. The City Council 
referred the issues relating to officeholder and D-13 accounts to its Agenda and Rules 
Committee for further consideration.

Proposed Changes to City Council Expenditure and Reimbursement Policies
At the April 23, 2020 meeting of the Open Government Committee (OGC), a motion to direct 
staff to develop a proposal recommending Council change City policy to remove 
councilmember names from donations to nonprofit organizations from D- 13 accounts was 
approved unanimously.

Donations to nonprofit organizations from the Councilmember’s discretionary council budget 
(D-13 accounts) puts that elected official in a favorable light with Berkeley citizens at no cost 
to the Councilmember, an option not available to a challenger for that office. A look at the 
Consent Calendar of City Council Meeting Agendas will often contain one or more items from 
one or more Councilmembers making a donation to a nonprofit organization “from the 
discretionary council budget” of the Councilmember. This line item (“Services and Materials”) 
from the General Fund was increased from $50,938 in FY 2017 to $113,526 in FY 2018 
(approximately $40,000 for the Mayor, the balance evenly divided among the 
Councilmembers; see Attachment – Council Office Budget Summaries). While not technically 
a “campaign contribution,” those individuals in the organization as well as individuals 
favorably disposed to the nonprofit organization receiving the funds would certainly see it 
favorably.  A person running against this incumbent would have to draw on their own 
resources to match a Councilmember’s contribution from public funds and without the public 
notice of the contribution the Councilmember receives.

In addition to favoring incumbents, the use of public moneys for contributions to nonprofit 
organizations from the discretionary council budgets of individual Council members is 
arguably improper and certainly bad optics. The commissioners of the OGC have no 
argument with contributions being made to nonprofit organizations from the City of 
Berkeley, but believe they should be made in the name of the entire Berkeley City Council on 
behalf of the citizens of Berkeley, not from individual Council members.  Perhaps a nonprofit 
fund could be set up from which the donations could be made from recommendations made 
to one of the Council’s Policy Commissions. This would free funds for other purposes now 
being directed to nonprofit organizations from individual Councilmember’s D-13 accounts.

Proposed Action:
At this stage, the Council has referred both the issues relating to officeholder accounts and 
those relating to D-13 accounts to its Agenda and Rules Committee for further consideration. 
At a special meeting on March 9, 2020, that Committee agreed to work collaboratively with 
the FCPC and OGC on matters relating to officeholder accounts and D-13 accounts. This 
collaborative work with the Council was included in the FCPC and OGC 2020-2021 workplans, 
which were approved on May 21, 2020.

Consistent with the prior actions of the Council and the FCPC/OGC, the Commissions 
recommend the establishment of a subcommittee of members of the City Council and 
members of the Fair Campaign Practices and Open Government Commissions to:

Page 3 of 28

83



(1) prepare an ordinance amending the Berkeley Election Reform Act (BMC Chapter 
2.12) to prohibit or regulate officeholder accounts, and

(2) prepare a change in City Council Expenditure and Reimbursement policies 
(Resolution 67,992-N.S.) to have donations to nonprofit organizations made in the name 
of the entire Berkeley City Council on behalf of the citizens of Berkeley rather than from 
individual Council members.

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY
There are no identifiable environmental effects related to the recommendation in this 
report.

RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION
The “double green light” process requires that the FCPC adopt an amendment by a two-
thirds vote, and that the City Council hold a public hearing and also adopt an amendment by 
a two-thirds vote. Evidence to date suggests there are differences of perspective regarding 
this matter between the City Council and the FCPC regarding the D-13 accounts. It would 
seem to be a rational step to discuss and come to agreement and possibly compromise prior 
to the “double green light” process.

ALTERNATIVE ACTIONS CONSIDERED
None.

CITY MANAGER

CONTACT PERSON
Brad Smith, Chair, Fair Campaign Practices and Open Government Commissions, (510) 981-
6998
Samuel Harvey, Commission Secretary, Fair Campaign Practices and Open Government 
Commissions, (510) 981-6998

Attachments:
1. FCPC February 4, 2020 report to Council and attachments
2. Mayor and City Council Financial Summary

Page 4 of 28

84



Page 5 of 28

85



Page 6 of 28

86



Page 7 of 28

87



Page 8 of 28

88



Page 9 of 28

89



Page 10 of 28

90



Page 11 of 28

91



Page 12 of 28

92



Page 13 of 28

93



Page 14 of 28

94



Page 15 of 28

95



Page 16 of 28

96



Page 17 of 28

97



Page 18 of 28

98



Page 19 of 28

99



Page 20 of 28

100



Page 21 of 28

101



Page 22 of 28

102



Page 23 of 28

103



Page 24 of 28

104



Page 25 of 28

105



Page 26 of 28

106



Page 27 of 28

107



Page 28 of 28

108



Homeless Commission

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 ● Tel: (510) 981-7000 ● TDD: (510) 981-6903 ● Fax: (510) 981-7099
E-mail: manager@CityofBerkeley.info  Website: http://www.CityofBerkeley.info/Manager

ACTION CALENDAR
January 26, 2021

To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

From: Homeless Commission 

Submitted by: Carole Marasovic, Chairperson, Homeless Commission

Subject: A People’s First Sanctuary Encampment

RECOMMENDATION
The City Council to adopt the People’s First Sanctuary Encampment Model 
incorporating all text in this report, urging best practices for Sanctuary Homeless 
Encampments with an oversight agency to be named by members of the encampment 
community and refer to the City Manager to fund liability insurance for the agency 
chosen by the encampment community.

POLICY COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION
At the December 14, 2020, meeting the Health, Life Enrichment, Equity & Community 
Committee moved M/S/C (Kesarwani/Bartlett) the Companion Report with a qualified 
positive recommendation to the City Council to take the following action: 1.Direct the 
City Manager to incorporate parts of the Commission’s recommendations, including: 
providing clean water, sanitation, accessible toilets and trash removal services; and 
requiring that homeless services providers obtain input from clients when developing 
rules and ensure that the privacy and security of clients is respected and maintained at 
all times; 2. In addition, the City Manager shall receive the Homeless Commission’s 
recommendations and retain them for future guidance when developing homeless 
services programs and models; and 3. That the City Council reaffirms its commitment to 
dignified and client-centered homeless services. Vote: All Ayes. 

FISCAL IMPACTS OF RECOMMENDATION
Allocations from Measure P funding regarding emergency services, tents, heating 
equipment, waste, water purification, food distribution and waste management, 
sanitation, healthcare, hygiene, and accessibility services.

Sanctioned encampments will provide accessible and accountable avenues for public 
funding. Supportive services and emergency run visits may become unburdened 
through harm-reduction models. Rehousing services may become unburdened through 
partnerships between small-sites, small-property owners, land trusts, cooperatives and 
resident homeowners.

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS

Page 1 of 4

109

mailto:manager@cityofberkeley.info
http://www.ci.berkeley.ca.us/manager
rthomsen
Typewritten Text
02a.16a



A People’s First Sanctuary Encampment ACTION CALENDAR
January 26, 2021

Page 2

The Peoples First Sanctuary is a Strategic Plan Priority Project, advancing our goal to 
create a resilient, safe, connected, and prepared city as well as champion and 
demonstrate social and racial equity.

BACKGROUND
On January 8, 2020, the Homeless Commission votes as follows: 

Action: M/S/C Marasovic/ to defer the People’s Sanctuary Encampment 
recommendation for discussion to next month’s meeting and direct the Council 
encampment chart referral back to the encampment subcommittee to be returned to the 
full Commission at next month’s meeting.

No Vote: motion died for lack of a second. 

Action: M/S/C Hill/ Mulligan to approve the People’s First Sanctuary Recommendation 
with the following amendments to the recommendation section: 
(i) to include that an oversight agency be named by members of the encampment 
community, and (ii) refer to the City Manager to fund liability insurance for the agency 
chosen by the encampment community.

Vote: Ayes: Hill, Kealoha-Blake, Mulligan, Behm-Steinberg
Noes: Andrew.  Abstain: Marasovic. Absent: Hirpara.

Marasovic abstention due to i) Council directive to respond to encampment chart 
referral, ii) believes in the spirit of self-governance, and iii) the recommendation is 
not a realistic plan.

According to the 1,000 Person Plan to Address Homelessness, on any given night in 
Berkeley, there are nearly 1,000 people experiencing homelessness. The City of 
Berkeley has implemented a number of programs to respond to this crisis, but data from 
the homeless point-in-time count indicate that, for the past several years, homelessness 
has nonetheless steadily increased. To understand the resources and interventions 
required to end homelessness in Berkeley--both by housing the currently unhoused 
population and by preventing inflow of future homelessness--the City Council asked 
staff to create a 1000 Person Plan on April 4, 2017.

While all homeless people lack stable housing, not everyone needs the same level of 
support to obtain housing. To end homelessness in Berkeley, the city needs targeted 
investments in a variety of interventions, ensuring every person who experiences 
homelessness in Berkeley receives an appropriate and timely resolution according to 
their level of need (i.e., a homeless population of size “functional zero”). HHCS staff 
analyzed ten years of administrative homelessness data to understand the personal 
characteristics of people experiencing homelessness in Berkeley, how they are 

Page 2 of 4

110



A People’s First Sanctuary Encampment ACTION CALENDAR
January 26, 2021

Page 3

interacting with homeless services in Berkeley, and the factors most predictive of exiting 
homelessness without eventually returning back to the system. 

From these analyses, HHCS staff estimate that over the course of a year, nearly 2000 
people experience homelessness in Berkeley. This population has been growing 
because the population is increasingly harder to serve (longer histories of 
homelessness and more disabilities) and because housing is too expensive for them to 
afford on their own.

The types and sizes of all interventions to help Berkeley reach “functional zero” by 2028 
are described in this report. To end homelessness for 1000 people in Berkeley, the 
original referral directive from City Council, the City will need up-front investments in 
targeted homelessness prevention, light-touch housing problem-solving, rapid 
rehousing, and permanent subsidies.

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY
There are no identifiable environmental opportunities associated with the content of this 
report. 

RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION
The following principles, developed and proposed by unhoused community members 
have guided the Peoples First sanctuary Encampment Model’s goals to secure the 
safety of all residents, community members and responsible parties:

That a sanctuary encampment be a peoples first driven model in which the city shall 
provide capacity-building training for residents of the encampment but shall not interfere 
with the internal makeup or democratic decision making of encampment members. 
Collective punishment, regulations, and raids must not occur within a sanctuary 
encampment. Local authorities may not force safe havens to accept residents without 
the collective consent of its existing membership.

No protected person’s sovereignty shall be interfered with or may be punished for an 
offense they have not personally committed. Freedom from surveillance, freedom from 
confiscation of property, and Privacy rights must be established by the City of Berkeley. 
Mental Health care and First Responders should be available for consultation. 
Sanctioned encampment councils should be made up of residents of the sanctioned 
encampment. Unsheltered people, public and private agencies, boards, councils and 
commissions coordinating with the sanctuary encampment should communicate the 
needs of sanctioned encampments to transitional housing services with good faith.

All people sheltering themselves within a sanctuary encampment which a public 
authority shall provide clean water, sanitation, accessible toilets and trash removal 
services for the sanctioned encampment.

Page 3 of 4

111



A People’s First Sanctuary Encampment ACTION CALENDAR
January 26, 2021

Page 4

New Housing developments should consider and prioritize the most vulnerable citizens 
living in sanctioned encampments. There should be changes to land-use and zoning 
policies to include affordability covenants, community land trusts, housing cooperatives, 
section eight housing vouchers as well as reclaiming vacant properties for sanctioned 
encampments. Rent control ordinances to retain price-control for tenants and small-site 
property owners.

ALTERNATIVE ACTIONS CONSIDERED
The Commission considered responding to Council encampment chart referral.

CITY MANAGER
See companion report.

CONTACT PERSON
Brittany Carnegie, Commission Secretary, HHCS, 510-981-5415

Page 4 of 4

112



Cheryl Davila
Councilmember 
District 2

ACTION CALENDAR
January 26, 2021

To:  Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 

From: Councilmembers Cheryl Davila (Author)

Subject: Declare Juneteenth as a City Holiday for the City of Berkeley

RECOMMENDATION
1. Adopt a resolution declaring Juneteenth as a City Holiday for the City of Berkeley 
2. Send copies of this resolution to State Assemblywoman Buffy Wicks, State Senator 

Nancy Skinner, and United States Congresswoman Barbara Lee.

POLICY COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 
This item expired on December 14, 2020, and is returning to Council with no action taken by the 
Budget and Finance Policy Committee. 

BACKGROUND
Juneteenth, slaves received the news of their liberation more than two years after President 
Abraham Lincoln’s Emancipation Proclamation went into effect on January 1, 1863; African 
Americans across the state were made aware of their right to freedom on June 19, 1865, when 
Major General Gordon Granger arrived in Galveston with federal troops to read General Order 
No. 3 announcing the end of the Civil War and that all enslaved people.

Governor Andrew M. Cuomo recently issued an Executive Order recognizing Juneteenth as a 
holiday for state employees, in recognition of the official emancipation of African Americans 
throughout the United States. The Governor will also advance legislation to make Juneteenth 
an official state holiday next year. The City of Berkeley should follow Governor Cuomo’s lead 
and ask Governor Newsome to do the same. California has a tradition of acknowledging 
significant milestones in advancing the cause of freedom, and some of whom descend directly 
from those brave men and women that gained freedom on that day, join in celebrating the 
155th anniversary of Juneteenth, an observance that commemorates the official announcement 
made in the State of Texas regarding the abolition of slavery and the freeing of some quarter-
million African Americans.

The observance of Juneteenth honors the history, perseverance, and achievements of African 
Americans, and celebrates America’s progress and continuing commitment to realizing the 
principles of liberty and equality upon which our nation was founded.

This observance is a reminder of the hardships and losses suffered by African Americans in 

Page 1 of 4

113

https://www.governor.ny.gov/news/no-204-declaring-juneteenth-holiday-new-york-state-employees
rthomsen
Typewritten Text
02a.17



their struggle to attain freedom, and we pay tribute to the memory of those who made the 
ultimate sacrifice in this quest; through their experiences and those of others who were 
successful in achieving victory, we find among the most poignant and valuable lessons of 
humankind that continue to resonate with people of all backgrounds.

The official emancipation of African Americans throughout the United States literally and 
figuratively opened doors of opportunity that enabled following generations to contribute 
immeasurably to our nation’s richness, equality of citizens, and global leadership, and today 
communities across our state – from Brooklyn to Buffalo – mark the anniversary of Juneteenth 
with appropriate commemoration.

Juneteenth is not just a Black liberation day, but a day of American liberation in a deep sense 
possibly further than the Fourth of July. It is fitting that all join to commemorate such an 
important day in our nation’s history, as we take this opportunity to reflect upon and rejoice in 
the freedom and civil rights that we all share as Americans. 

The City of Berkeley for decades has celebrated Juneteenth on the streets on Adeline and 
Martin Luther King Jr. Way. Berkeley has recognized Malcolm X Birthday Day as a City 
Holiday, and it is time Juneteenth is added to be recognized as a City Holiday.

FISCAL IMPACTS OF RECOMMENDATION
None.

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY
Protecting our communities during this climate and health crisis is an act of environmental 
sustainability.

CONTACT PERSON
Cheryl Davila
Councilmember District 2                                                                                      
510.981.7120
cdavila@cityofberkeley.info 

Sanjita Pamidimukkala
District 2 Intern
925.984.9435
dh.spamidimukkala@students.srvusd.net

Eshal Sandhu
District 2 Intern
925.255.6608
dh.esandhu@students.srvusd.net

ATTACHMENTS
1. Resolution

Page 2 of 4

114

mailto:dh.spamidimukkala@students.srvusd.net
mailto:dh.esandhu@students.srvusd.net


RESOLUTION NO. ##,###-N.S.

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL FOR THE CITY OF BERKELEY DECLARING 
JUNETEENTH AS A CITY HOLIDAY.

WHEREAS, Juneteenth, slaves received the news of their liberation more than two years after 
President Abraham Lincoln’s Emancipation Proclamation went into effect on January 1, 1863; 
African Americans across the state were made aware of their right to freedom on June 19, 
1865, when Major General Gordon Granger arrived in Galveston with federal troops to read 
General Order No. 3 announcing the end of the Civil War and that all enslaved people; and 

WHEREAS, Governor Andrew M. Cuomo recently issued an Executive Order recognizing 
Juneteenth as a holiday for state employees, in recognition of the official emancipation of 
African Americans throughout the United States. The Governor will also advance legislation to 
make Juneteenth an official state holiday next year. The City of Berkeley should follow 
Governor Cuomo’s lead and ask Governor Newsome to do the same. California has a tradition 
of acknowledging significant milestones in advancing the cause of freedom, and some of whom 
descend directly from those brave men and women that gained freedom on that day, join in 
celebrating the 155th anniversary of Juneteenth, an observance that commemorates the official 
announcement made in the State of Texas regarding the abolition of slavery and the freeing of 
some quarter-million African Americans; and

WHEREAS, The observance of Juneteenth honors the history, perseverance, and 
achievements of African Americans, and celebrates America’s progress and continuing 
commitment to realizing the principles of liberty and equality upon which our nation was 
founded; and

WHEREAS, This observance is a reminder of the hardships and losses suffered by African 
Americans in their struggle to attain freedom, and we pay tribute to the memory of those who 
made the ultimate sacrifice in this quest; through their experiences and those of others who 
were successful in achieving victory, we find among the most poignant and valuable lessons of 
humankind that continue to resonate with people of all backgrounds; and

WHEREAS, This observance is a reminder of the hardships and losses suffered by African 
Americans in their struggle to attain freedom, and we pay tribute to the memory of those who 
made the ultimate sacrifice in this quest; through their experiences and those of others who 
were successful in achieving victory, we find among the most poignant and valuable lessons of 
humankind that continue to resonate with people of all backgrounds; and

WHEREAS, The official emancipation of African Americans throughout the United States 
literally and figuratively opened doors of opportunity that enabled following generations to 
contribute immeasurably to our nation’s richness, equality of citizens, and global leadership, 
and today communities across our state – from Brooklyn to Buffalo – mark the anniversary of 
Juneteenth with appropriate commemoration; and

WHEREAS, Juneteenth is not just a Black liberation day, but a day of American liberation in a 

Page 3 of 4

115

https://www.governor.ny.gov/news/no-204-declaring-juneteenth-holiday-new-york-state-employees


deep sense possibly further than the Fourth of July. It is fitting that all join to commemorate 
such an important day in our nation’s history, as we take this opportunity to reflect upon and 
rejoice in the freedom and civil rights that we all share as Americans; and

WHEREAS, The City of Berkeley for decades has celebrated Juneteenth on the streets on 
Adeline and Martin Luther King Jr. Way. Berkeley has recognized Malcolm X Birthday Day as a 
City Holiday, and it is time Juneteenth is added to be recognized as a City Holiday; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council for the City of Berkeley  
recognize June 19 of every year as Juneteenth, which shall be a holiday for city employees, 
who if not required to work, shall be entitled to leave at full pay without charge to existing 
accruals and for those employees who are required to work, they shall receive one day of 
compensatory time.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that copies of this resolution are sent to State Assemblywoman 
Buffy Wicks, State Senator Nancy Skinner, and United States Congresswoman Barbara Lee.

Page 4 of 4

116



 Office of the Mayor
CONSENT CALENDAR
January 26, 2021

To: Members of the City Council

From: Mayor Jesse Arreguín

Subject: Confirming Community Appointments to Reimagining Public Safety Task 
Force

RECOMMENDATION:
Adopt a Resolution:

1. Confirming the appointment of ___________ by the Associated Students of the 
University of California (ASUC) External Affairs Vice President to the Reimagining 
Public Safety Task Force

2. Confirming the appointment of ___________ by the Steering Committee of the 
Berkeley Community Safety Coalition (BCSC) to the Reimagining Public Safety Task 
Force 

BACKGROUND
On December 15, 2020, the Berkeley City Council unanimously adopted Resolution No. 
69,673-N.S. establishing the Reimagining Public Safety Task Force, and on January 19, 
2021 approved a revised resolution on January 19, 2021 to clarify the responsibilities and 
timeline of the Task Force, city staff and the consulting team with the National Institute for 
Criminal Justice Reform (Attachments 1 and 2). 

The enabling legislation for the Task Force requires that the City Council confirm by a 
majority vote appointments made by the ASUC External Affairs Vice President, Berkeley 
Community Safety Coalition and the 3 “At-Large” seats appointed by the Task Force. The 
confirmation of these members will allow them to be seated on the Task Force and for the 
important work of the Task Force to commence on the intended timeline.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
There are no direct fiscal impacts from Council confirming the appointments of the ASUC 
External Affairs Vice President and Berkeley Community Safety Coalition to the 
Reimagining Public Safety Task Force.

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY
There are no direct environmental impacts from the appointment of these members to 
the Reimagining Public Safety Task Force.

Page 1 of 18

117

rthomsen
Typewritten Text
02a.18



CONTACT PERSON
Jesse Arreguín, Mayor, (510) 981-7100

Attachments:
1. Resolution
2. Resolution No. 69,673-N.S, “Establishing Reimagining Public Safety Task Force”
3. “
4. January 19, 2021 City Council item, “Revisions to Enabling Legislation for 

Reimagining Public  Safety Task Force” 

Page 2 of 18

118



RESOLUTION NO. 

CONFIRMING APPOINTMENTS TO THE REIMAGINING PUBLIC SAFETY TASK 
FORCE

WHEREAS, On July 14, 2020, the Berkeley City Council made a historic commitment to 
reimagine the City’s approach to public safety with the passage of an omnibus package 
of referrals, resolutions and directions; and

WHEREAS, Central to this proposal is a commitment to a robust community process to 
achieve this “new and transformative model of positive, equitable and community 
centered safety for Berkeley”. Item 18d, Transforming Community Safety, provides 
direction on the development of a “Community Safety Coalition”, goals and a timeline 
led by a steering committee and guided by professional consultants; and

WHEREAS, on December 15, 2020 the City Council approved Resolution No. 69,673-
N.S, “Establishing Reimagining Public Safety Task Force”; and 

WHEREAS, Resolution No. 69,673 N.S. established membership comprised of: One (1) 
representative appointed by each member of the City Council and Mayor, one (1) 
representative appointed by the Mental Health, Police Review and Youth Commissions, 
one (1) representative appointed by the Berkeley Community Safety Coalition (BCSC), 
and three (3) additional members to be appointed “At Large” by the Task Force, all 
subject to confirmation by the City Council; and 

WHEREAS, the Berkeley Community Safety Coalition (BCSC) has nominated 
___________ as their representative on the Reimagining Public Safety Task Force; and

WHEREAS, the Associated Students of the University of California (ASUC) External 
Affairs Vice President have nominated _______ as their representative on the 
Reimagining Public Safety Task Force; 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Council of the City of Berkeley that it   
hereby confirms the appointment of __________ by the Berkeley Community Safety 
Coalition (BCSC) and the appointment of __________ by the Associated Students of 
the University of California (ASUC) External Affairs Vice President to the Reimagining 
Public Safety Task Force. 

Page 3 of 18

119



Page 4 of 18

120



Page 5 of 18

121



Page 6 of 18

122



Page 7 of 18

123



 Office of the Mayor
CONSENT CALENDAR
January 19, 2021

To: Members of the City Council

From: Mayor Jesse Arreguín

Subject: Revisions to Enabling Legislation for Reimagining Public Safety Task Force

RECOMMENDATION:
Adopt a Resolution:

1. Rescinding Resolution No. 69,673-N.S.; and

2. Establishing a Reimagining Public Safety Task Force, comprised of: (a) one 
representative appointed by each member of the City Council and Mayor pursuant to the 
Fair Representation Ordinance, B.M.C. Sections 2.04.030-2.04.130, (b) one representative 
appointed by the Mental Health Commission, Youth Commission, and Police Review 
Commission (to be replaced by a representative of the Police Accountability Board once it 
is established), and (c) one representative appointed by the Associated Students of the 
University of California (ASUC) External Affairs Vice President, one representative 
appointed by the Berkeley Community Safety Coalition (BCSC) Steering Committee, and 
three additional members to be appointed “At-Large” by the Task Force, with appointments 
subject to confirmation by the City Council. 

The Task Force will be facilitated by a professional consultant, the National Institute for 
Criminal Justice Reform (NICJR), with administrative support by the City Manager’s office, 
and will serve as the hub of community engagement for the Reimagining Public Safety 
effort initiated and guided by the NICJR team. The Task Force will also include the 
participation of City Staff from the City Manager’s Office, Human Resources, Health, 
Housing and Community Services, Berkeley Fire Department, Berkeley Police Department, 
and Public Works Department.  For visual, see Attachment 3. 

With the exception of “At-Large” appointments, appointments to the Task Force should be 
made by January 31, 2021,1 and reflect a diverse range of experiences, knowledge, 
expertise and representation. To maintain the Council’s July 14, 2020,2 commitment to 

1 With the exception of the “At Large” appointments, which will be selected by the initial appointees with an eye for 

adding outstanding perspectives, knowledge and experience.
2 “Be It Further Resolved that the City Council will engage with every willing community member in Berkeley, 

centering the voices of Black people, Native American people, people of color, immigrants, LGBTQ+ people, 

victims of harm, and other stakeholders who have been historically marginalized or under-served by our present 

Page 8 of 18

124



centering the voices of those most impacted in our process of reimagining community 
safety appointments should be made with the goal of achieving a balance of the following 
criteria:

a. Active Members of Berkeley Community (Required of All)*3

b. Representation from Impacted Communities
 Formerly incarcerated individuals
 Victims/family members of violent crime
 Immigrant community
 Communities impacted by high crime, over-policing and police violence
 Individuals experiencing homelessness
 Historically marginalized populations

c. Faith-Based Community Leaders
d. Expertise/Leadership in Violence Prevention, Youth Services, Crisis 

Intervention, and Restorative or Transformative Justice
e. Health/ Public Health Expertise
f. City of Berkeley labor/union representation
g. Law Enforcement Operation Knowledge
h. City Budget Operations/Knowledge
i. Committed to the Goals and Success of The Taskforce (Required of All)

As outlined in the July 14, 2020, City Council Omnibus Action,4 City Council provided 
direction for the development of a new paradigm of public safety that should include, but is 
not limited to: 

1)  Building on the work of the City Council, the City Manager, Berkeley Police 
Department (BPD), the Police Review Commission and other City 
commissions and other working groups addressing community health and 
safety.

2) Research and engagement to define a holistic, anti-racist approach to 
community safety, including a review and analysis of emerging models, 
programs and practices that could be applied in Berkeley.

3) Recommend a new, community-centered safety paradigm as a foundation for 
deep and lasting change, grounded in the principles of Reduce, Improve and 
Reinvest as proposed by the National Institute for Criminal Justice Reform 
considering,5 among other things:

system. Together, we will identify what safety looks like for everyone.”, Item 18d, Transform Community Safety, 

July 14, 2020, Berkeley City Council Agenda, 
3 * At Large Appointees are not required to be Berkeley Residents, as long as they are active, committed Berkeley 

Stakeholders. 
4 July 14th, 2020, Berkeley City Council Item 18a-e Proposed Omnibus Motion on Public Safety Items

5 Transforming Police, NICJR 

Page 9 of 18

125

https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2020/07_Jul/Documents/2020-07-14_Item_18d_Transform_Community_Safety_pdf.aspx
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2020/07_Jul/Documents/2020-07-14_Item_18d_Transform_Community_Safety_pdf.aspx
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2020/07_Jul/Documents/2020-07-14_Item_18_Omnibus_Recommendation_-_Supp.aspx
https://nicjr.org/wp-content/uploads/2020/09/Framework-For-Transforming-Police.pdf


A. The social determinants of health and changes required to deliver a 
holistic approach to community-centered safety.

B. The appropriate response to community calls for help including size, 
scope of operation and power and duties of a well-trained police force.

C. Limiting militarized weaponry and equipment.

D. Identifying alternatives to policing and enforcement to reduce conflict, 
harm, and institutionalization, introduce alternative and restorative 
justice models, and reduce or eliminate use of fines and incarceration.

E. Options to reduce police contacts, stops, arrests, tickets, fines and 
incarceration and replace these, to the greatest extent possible, with 
educational, community serving, restorative and other positive 
programs, policies and systems.

F. Reducing the Berkeley Police Department budget to reflect its revised 
mandates, with a goal of a 50% reduction, based on the results of 
requested analysis and achieved through programs such as the 
Specialized Care Unit.

Direct the City Manager to ensure that the working group of City Staff as outlined in the 
October 28th Off-Agenda Memo is coordinating with the Task Force.6

The Task Force will provide input to and make recommendations to NICJR and City Staff 
on a set of recommended programs, structures and initiatives incorporated into a final 
report and implementation plan developed by NICJR to guide future decision making in 
upcoming budget processes for FY 2022-23 and, as a second phase produced, in the FY 
2024-2025 budget processes.7 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
City Council allocated $270,000 in General Fund revenues to support engagement of 
outside consultants in the Reimagining Public Safety process. 

BACKGROUND
On July 14, 2020, the Berkeley City Council made a historic commitment to reimagine the 
City’s approach to public safety with the passage of an omnibus package of referrals, 
resolutions and directions. Central to this proposal is a commitment to a robust community 
process to achieve this “new and transformative model of positive, equitable and 
community centered safety for Berkeley”. Item 18d, Transforming Community Safety, 
provides direction on the development of a “Community Safety Coalition”, goals and a 
timeline led by a steering committee and guided by professional consultants. 
Recommendation 3 above reflects the original scope voted on by the council. However, 

6October 28, 2020 Off-Agenda Memo:  Update on Re-Imagining Public Safety 
7 The final report and implementation plan are referenced in the contract approved by the City Council with the 

NICJR Consultant team on December 15, 2020. 

Page 10 of 18

126

https://www.cityofberkeley.info/uploadedFiles/Clerk/Level_3_-_General/Reimagining%20Public%20Safety%20Update%20102820.pdf


that item did not specify the structure, exact qualifications or process of appointing this 
steering committee. This item follows the spirit of the original referral, and provides 
direction on structure, desired qualifications and appointment process.
To avoid confusion with the community organization that has independently formed since 
the passage of that referral, this steering committee is now being referred to as the 
Reimagining Public Safety Task Force. 

City staff has been diligently been working to implement the referrals in the omnibus 
motion, including the development, release and evaluation of a request for proposals (RFP) 
for a consultant to facilitate this process.8 Initially, the expectation was that the 
development of a structure and process for the Task Force would be developed in 
consultation with the professionals selected by this RFP. However, to ensure thorough 
review of these proposals the timeline for selecting the consultant is longer than initially 
expected. At the July 18, 2020, meeting, City Council clearly stated that the Task Force will 
begin meeting no later than January 2021. To meet this timeline, the Council should adopt 
the proposed framework and appointment process so that the Task Force and our 
community process can begin shortly after the RFP process is completed. 

This resolution is being reintroduced to clarify the process for transitioning appointments 
from the Police Review Commission to the newly established Police Accountability Board 
and to ensure that the Task Force works with the NICJR consultant team to develop one 
report and set of recommendations. The initial resolution was written prior to the finalization 
of a contract with NICJR. After consultation with city staff and the consultant team, the 
revised language will set clear expectations and a foundation for successful collaboration 
between the work of the Task Force and the consultant team.

RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION
The proposed structure creates a Task Force with 17 total seats, ensuring representation 
from each Councilmember and the Mayor, key commissions including the Police Review 
Commission, the Youth Commission and the Mental Health Commission as well as 
representation from the ASUC, the Berkeley Community Safety Coalition (BCSC) and three 
“at-large” members to be selected by the Task Force to fill any unrepresented stakeholder 
position or subject matter expertise, with the community based organization and at-large 
appointments subject to confirmation by the City Council.9 

This model was developed with input from all co-authors, the City Manager, community 
stakeholders including the ASUC and BCSC as well organizations and experts with 
experience running community engagement processes. Additionally, the Mayor’s office 
researched a wide range of public processes that could inform the structure and approach 

8 Ibid
9 The Berkeley Community Safety Coalition, initially known as Berkeley United for Community Safety, produced a 

40 page report that was shared with the council in July. Their recommendations were referred to the reimagining 

process as part of the Mayor’s omnibus motion. Co-Founder Moni Law describes BCSC as a “principled coalition 

that is multiracial, multigenerational and Black and brown centered. We include over 2,000 people and 

approximately a dozen organizations and growing.” 

Page 11 of 18

127

http://www.berkeleycommunitysafety.org/


for Berkeley, including youth-led campaigns, participatory budgeting processes, and long-
term initiatives like the California Endowment Building Healthy Communities initiative.10 

The proposed Task Force structure and process draws most directly on the processes 
underway in Oakland and in Austin, Texas.1112 In July, Oakland voted to establish a 
Reimagining Public Safety Task Force with 17 members, including appointees from all 
councilmembers and the Mayor, three appointees from their public safety boards, two 
appointees to represent youth and two at-large appointees selected by their council co-
chairs13. The model proposed for Berkeley draws heavily from the Oakland approach. A 
key difference is that, unlike Oakland, this proposed structure does not recommend 
developing additional community advisory boards. Instead, it is recommended that 
Berkeley leverage our commissions and community organizations to provide additional 
input and research to inform the Task Force’s work rather than establish additional 
community advisory boards. 

The list of proposed qualifications for appointees (recommendation 2) is also modeled after 
Oakland’s approach. In July, the city council committed to centering the voices of those that 
are most impacted by our current system of public safety as we reimagine it for the future. 
The list of qualifications is intended to guide councilmembers and other appointing bodies 
and organizations to ensure that the makeup of the Task Force reflects that commitment. 
After all appointments are made, the Task Force will select 3 additional “at large” members 
to join the Task Force with an eye on adding perspectives, expertise or experience that are 
missing in initial appointments.  

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY
There are no identifiable environmental effects or opportunities associated with the
action requested in this report.

ALTERNATIVE ACTIONS CONSIDERED 
Alternative appointment structures were evaluated, including a citywide application process 
and an independent selection committee. However, given that the Task Force will ultimately 
advise the City Council, there was broad agreement that the Council should have a strong 
role in appointing the Task Force. 

CONTACT PERSON
Jesse Arreguín, Mayor, (510) 981-7100

Attachments:
1. Resolution Establishing Reimagining Public Safety Task Force
2. Resolution No. 69,673-N.S.

10 California Endowment Building Healthy Communities Initiative. 
11 Austin, Texas Reimagining Public Safety Task Force 
12 Reimagining Public Safety, Oakland website 
13 Oakland Reimagining Public Safety Task Force Framework 

Page 12 of 18

128

https://www.calendow.org/places/
https://austintexas.gov/publicsafety/task-force
https://www.oaklandca.gov/topics/reimagining-public-safety
https://cao-94612.s3.amazonaws.com/documents/View-Slideshow.pdf


3. Framework for Reimagining Public Safety Task Force
4. July 14, 2020 City Council Item 18d, Transforming Community Safety
5. July 14, 2020 City Council Item a-e, Proposed Omnibus Motion on Public Safety 

Items

Page 13 of 18

129



RESOLUTION NO. 

ESTABLISHING THE REIMAGINING PUBLIC SAFETY TASK FORCE

WHEREAS, On July 14, 2020, the Berkeley City Council made a historic commitment to 
reimagine the City’s approach to public safety with the passage of an omnibus package 
of referrals, resolutions and directions; and

WHEREAS, Central to this proposal is a commitment to a robust community process to 
achieve this “new and transformative model of positive, equitable and community 
centered safety for Berkeley”. Item 18d, Transforming Community Safety, provides 
direction on the development of a “Community Safety Coalition”, goals and a timeline 
led by a steering committee and guided by professional consultants; and

WHEREAS, on December 15, 2020, the City Council authorized the City Manager to 
enter into a contract with the National Institute for Criminal Justice Reform (NICJR) who 
will conduct research, analysis, and use its expertise to develop reports and 
recommendations for community safety and police reform as well as plan, develop, and 
lead an inclusive and transparent community engagement process to help the City 
achieve a new and transformative model of positive, equitable and community-centered 
safety for Berkeley; and

WHEREAS, the NICJR has agreed to perform the following work:

 Working with the City Auditor on the assessment of emergency and non-emergency 
calls for service.  

 Developing a summary and presentation of new and emerging models of community 
safety and policing.

 Developing and implementing a communications strategy to ensure that the 
community is well informed, a robust community engagement process, and 
managing the Task Force to be established by the City Council.  

 Identifying the programs and/or services that are currently provided by the Berkeley 
Police Department that can be provided by other City departments and / or 
organizations.  

 Developing a final report and implementation plan that will be used to guide future 
decision making.

WHEREAS, to avoid confusion with the community organization that has independently 
formed since the passage of that referral, this steering committee is now being referred 
to as the Reimagining Public Safety Task Force; and 

Page 14 of 18

130



WHEREAS, the purpose of this Resolution is to specify the structure, criteria, and role 
of the Reimagining Public Safety Task Force.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Berkeley that 
Resolution No. 69,673-N.S. is hereby rescinded; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Berkeley City Council does hereby establish the 
Reimagining Public Safety Task Force. 

1. The membership shall be comprised of: 
a. One (1) representative appointed by each member of the City Council and 

Mayor, pursuant to the Fair Representation Ordinance, B.M.C. Sections 
2.04.030-2.04.130, 

b. One (1) representative appointed from the Mental Health Commission, Youth 
Commission and Police Review Commission (to be replaced by a 
representative of the Police Accountability Board once it is established), and 

c. Subject to confirmation by the City Council, one (1) representative appointed 
by the Associated Students of the University of California (ASUC) External 
Affairs Vice President, one (1) representative appointed by the Berkeley 
Community Safety Coalition (BCSC) Steering Committee, and three (3) 
additional members to be appointed “At-Large” by the Task Force. 

2. With the exception of the “At-Large” appointments, appointments to the Task Force 
should be made by January 31, 2021,14 and reflect a diverse range of experiences, 
knowledge, expertise and representation. To maintain the Council’s July 14, 2020,15 
commitment to centering the voices of those most impacted in our process of 
reimagining community safety, appointments should be made with the goal of 
achieving a balance of the following criteria:

a. Active Members of Berkeley Community (Required of All)*16

b. Representation from Impacted Communities
 Formerly incarcerated individuals
 Victims/family members of violent crime
 Immigrant community
 Communities impacted by high crime, over-policing and police violence
 Individuals experiencing homelessness
 Historically marginalized populations

14 With the exception of the “At Large” appointments, which will be selected by the initial appointees with an eye 

for adding outstanding perspectives, knowledge and experience.
15 “Be It Further Resolved that the City Council will engage with every willing community member in Berkeley, 

centering the voices of Black people, Native American people, people of color, immigrants, LGBTQ+ people, 

victims of harm, and other stakeholders who have been historically marginalized or under-served by our present 

system. Together, we will identify what safety looks like for everyone.”, Item 18d, Transform Community Safety, 

July 14, 2020, Berkeley City Council Agenda, 

Page 15 of 18

131

https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2020/07_Jul/Documents/2020-07-14_Item_18d_Transform_Community_Safety_pdf.aspx
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2020/07_Jul/Documents/2020-07-14_Item_18d_Transform_Community_Safety_pdf.aspx


c. Faith-Based Community Leaders
d. Expertise/Leadership in Violence Prevention, Youth Services, Crisis 

Intervention, and Restorative or Transformative Justice
e. Health/ Public Health Expertise
f. City of Berkeley labor/union representation
g. Law Enforcement Operation Knowledge
h. City Budget Operations/Knowledge
i. Committed to the Goals and Success of The Taskforce (Required of All)

3. At Large Appointees are not required to be Berkeley Residents, as long as they are 
active, committed Berkeley stakeholders.

4. As outlined in the July 14, 2020, City Council Omnibus Action,17 City Council 
provided direction for the development of a new paradigm of public safety that 
should include, but is not limited to: 

1)  Building on the work of the City Council, the City Manager, Berkeley Police 
Department, the Police Review Commission and other City commissions and 
other working groups addressing community health and safety.

2) Research and engagement to define a holistic, anti-racist approach to 
community safety, including a review and analysis of emerging models, 
programs and practices that could be applied in Berkeley.

3) Recommend a new, community-centered safety paradigm as a foundation for 
deep and lasting change, grounded in the principles of Reduce, Improve and 
Reinvest as proposed by the National Institute for Criminal Justice Reform 
(NICJR)considering,18 among other things:

A. The social determinants of health and changes required to deliver a 
holistic approach to community-centered safety.

B. The appropriate response to community calls for help including size, 
scope of operation and power and duties of a well-trained police force.

C. Limiting militarized weaponry and equipment.

D. Identifying alternatives to policing and enforcement to reduce conflict, 
harm, and institutionalization, introduce alternative and restorative 
justice models, and reduce or eliminate use of fines and incarceration.

E. Options to reduce police contacts, stops, arrests, tickets, fines and 
incarceration and replace these, to the greatest extent possible, with 

17 July 14th, 2020, Berkeley City Council Item 18a-e Proposed Omnibus Motion on Public Safety Items

18 Transforming Police, NICJR 

Page 16 of 18

132

https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2020/07_Jul/Documents/2020-07-14_Item_18_Omnibus_Recommendation_-_Supp.aspx
https://nicjr.org/wp-content/uploads/2020/09/Framework-For-Transforming-Police.pdf


educational, community serving, restorative and other positive 
programs, policies and systems.

F. Reducing the Berkeley Police Department budget to reflect its revised 
mandates, with a goal of a 50% reduction, based on the results of 
requested analysis and achieved through programs such as the 
Specialized Care Unit; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Task Force will provide input to and make 
recommendations to NICJR and City Staff on a set of recommended programs, structures 
and initiatives incorporated into a final report and implementation plan developed by NICJR 
to guide future decision making in upcoming budget processes for FY 2022-23 and, as a 
second phase produced, in the FY 2024-2025 budget processes.19; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Manager is requested to provide updates and 
coordinate with the Task Force regarding the work that is underway on various aspects of 
the July 14, 2020 Omnibus package adopted by City Council including the Specialized 
Care Unit, BerkDoT, and priority dispatching (For visual, see Attachment 2); and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the Task Force shall sunset at the earlier of City Council’s 
adoption of the final report and implementation plan developed by NICJR or three years 
after appointments are made unless the Task Force is otherwise extended by the City 
Council; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the Task Force should be subject to the Commissioner’s 
Manual; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, Mayor and City Council appointments to the Task Force 
shall be made, and vacancies shall be filled, in accordance with the provisions of 
Sections 2.04.030 through 2.04.130 of the Berkeley Municipal Code; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, The appointment of any member of the Task Force shall 
automatically terminate as set forth in Berkeley Municipal Code Chapter 3.02 due to 
attendance; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, The City Clerk shall notify any member whose 
appointment has automatically terminated and report to the appointing City 
Councilmember or appointing authority that a vacancy exists on the Task Force and that 
an appointment should be made to fill the vacancy; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, Temporary appointments may be made and leaves of 
absence may be granted by the appointing authority pursuant to Berkeley Municipal 
Code Section 3.03.030 and the Commissioners’ Manual; and

19 The final report and implementation plan are referenced in the contract approved by the City Council with the 

NICJR Consultant team on December 15, 2020

Page 17 of 18

133



BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, A majority of the members appointed to the Task Force 
shall constitute a quorum and the affirmative vote of a majority of the members 
appointed is required to take any action; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, The Task Force shall keep an accurate record of its 
proceedings and transactions; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, The Task Force may make and alter rules governing its 
organization and procedures which are not inconsistent with Resolution or any other 
applicable ordinance of the city, or any resolution of the city governing commission 
procedures and conduct; and

BE IT FURTHER AND FINALLY RESOLVED, The Task Force shall establish a regular 
place and time for meeting. All meetings shall be noticed as required by law and shall 
be scheduled in a way to allow for maximum input from the public. The frequency of 
meetings shall be as determined by the Task Force Chair in consultation with NICJR 
and City Staff.

Page 18 of 18

134



Public Works Commission
Disaster & Fire Safety Commission
Transportation Commission

INFORMATION CALENDAR
       January 26, 2021

To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

From: Public Works Commission, Disaster & Fire Safety Commission, 
Transportation Commission

Submitted by: Shane Krpata, Chairperson, Utility Undergrounding Subcommittee
Matthew Freiberg, Chairperson, Public Works Commission
Gradiva Couzin, Chairperson, Disaster & Fire Safety Commission
Barnali Ghosh, Chairperson, Transportation Commission

Subject: Report for Phase 3 Study to Underground Utility Wires in Berkeley

INTRODUCTION
Climate changes continue to threaten Berkeley with risks of wildland urban interface 
fires. Undergrounding overhead utility wires is an important tool to reduce the risks.

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS
The attached document is the Phase 3 Study of the City Council referral. This work was 
completed at the end of 2019, and the report was approved by the Public Works 
Commission on November 7, 2019, Transportation Commission on January 16, 2020, 
and Disaster and Fire Safety Commission on February 26, 2020. It was scheduled to be 
presented to Council in March 2020 and has been delayed because of the Covid-19 
pandemic emergency. The Commissions are providing it now as an informational item 
and are making the following recommendations.

1. The participating commissions encourage the continuation of studying 
undergrounding as an option to save lives. Our climate is in a crisis and the 
devastation caused by wildfires is increasing each year. 

2. Further studying of undergrounding shall be conducted within the work scope of 
the Vision 2050 initiative. The initiative was approved by Council in September 
2020 and is being implemented.

3. This transmittal closes out the Council referral from December 2014.

Page 1 of 253

135

rthomsen
Typewritten Text
02a.19



Report for Phase 3 Study to Underground INFORMATION CALENDAR
Utility Wires in Berkeley January 26, 2021

Public Works Commission discussed the recommendations at its November 7th, 
2019 meeting and a motion was made to approve the report pending the inclusion 
of the items in the meeting minutes of this conversation.

Action: It was Moved/Seconded (Erbe/Constantine) to “Approve the Utilities 
Undergrounding Subcommittee Report pending the inclusion of the items in 
the meeting minutes of this conversation.”

Vote: Aye - 9; Nay - 0; Abstain - 0; Absent - 0
Outcome: Unanimous Agreement

Transportation Commission discussed the recommendations at its January 16th, 
2020 meeting and a motion was made to approve forwarding the Utilities 
Undergrounding Subcommittee Report to City Council.

Action: It was Moved/Seconded (Parolek/Zander) to “Approve forwarding the 
Utilities Undergrounding Subcommittee Report to City Council.”

Vote: Aye - 7; Nay - 0; Abstain - 0; Absent - 2
Outcome: Unanimous Agreement

Disaster & Fire Safety Commission discussed the recommendations at its 
February 26th, 2020 meeting and a motion was made to approve forwarding the 
Report for Phase 3 Study to Underground Utility Wires in Berkeley to the City 
Council.

Action: It was Moved/Seconded (Degenkolb/Grimes) to “Approve forwarding 
the Report for Phase 3 Study to Underground Utility Wires in Berkeley to 
the City Council.”

Vote: Aye - 9; Nay - 0; Abstain - 0; Absent - 0
Outcome: Unanimous Agreement

The Public Works Commission, Transportation Commission, and Disaster & Fire Safety 
Commission each voted and unanimously agreed to forward the Phase 3 Study to 
Council. 

BACKGROUND
The City Council, at its meeting December 16, 2014, referred to the Public Works, 
Disaster and Fire Safety and Transportation Commissions to develop a comprehensive 
plan for the funding of the undergrounding of utility wires on all major and collector 
streets in Berkeley. The arterial and collector streets were identified as a priority for the 
movement of emergency vehicles and the evacuation of residents in the event of a 
major disaster. The commissions organized a four-phase work plan consisting of: 1) 
baseline study to summarize Berkeley’s status on undergrounding, 2) conceptual study 
to determine the feasibility of undergrounding, 3) financial and implementation plan to 
underground the recommended streets, and 4) implementation of an approved program. 

Page 2 of 253

136



Report for Phase 3 Study to Underground INFORMATION CALENDAR
Utility Wires in Berkeley January 26, 2021

The commissions presented the Phase 2 report to Council on February 27, 2018. It was 
well received and Council authorized proceeding with the Phase 3 study.

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY
Undergrounding utility wires is environmentally sustainable by providing space for large 
trees and green infrastructure while improving public safety and energy reliability by 
substantially reducing the likelihood of downed wires and network disruptions along 
emergency evacuation corridors.

POSSIBLE FUTURE ACTION
It is important to recognize that undergrounding utility wires on evacuation routes must 
be only one component of a suite of actions to ensure that our community can safely 
escape advancing fire and first responders can access areas to fight fires. 
Undergrounding should be considered in combination with other actions, including but 
not be limited to educating the public of the risks, reducing vegetation that fuels fires, 
parking restrictions to provide more roadway clearance, improved road markings and 
signage, and more.

FISCAL IMPACTS OF POSSIBLE FUTURE ACTION
The estimated cost of the undergrounding program recommended in the Phase 3 Study 
is $90M in 2019 dollars. The Subcommittee has identified multiple funding strategies, 
described in the Section 2 Chapter C “Funding Strategies” (p.12) of the Phase 3 Study.

CONTACT PERSON
Andrew Brozyna, Deputy Director of Public Works, 510-981-6496
Joe Enke, Commission Secretary, Supervising Civil Engineer, 510-981-6411

Attachment: 
1: Study to Underground Utility Wires in Berkeley Phase 3 Report

Page 3 of 253

137



Page 4 of 253

138



Page 5 of 253

139



Page 6 of 253

140



Page 7 of 253

141



Page 8 of 253

142



Page 9 of 253

143



Page 10 of 253

144



Page 11 of 253

145



Page 12 of 253

146



Page 13 of 253

147



Page 14 of 253

148



Page 15 of 253

149



Page 16 of 253

150



Page 17 of 253

151



Page 18 of 253

152



Page 19 of 253

153



Page 20 of 253

154



Page 21 of 253

155



Page 22 of 253

156



Page 23 of 253

157



Page 24 of 253

158



Page 25 of 253

159



Page 26 of 253

160



Page 27 of 253

161



Page 28 of 253

162



Page 29 of 253

163



Page 30 of 253

164



Page 31 of 253

165



Page 32 of 253

166



Page 33 of 253

167



Page 34 of 253

168



Page 35 of 253

169



Page 36 of 253

170



Page 37 of 253

171



Page 38 of 253

172



Page 39 of 253

173



Page 40 of 253

174



Page 41 of 253

175



Page 42 of 253

176



Page 43 of 253

177



Page 44 of 253

178



Page 45 of 253

179



Page 46 of 253

180



Page 47 of 253

181



Page 48 of 253

182



Page 49 of 253

183



Page 50 of 253

184



Page 51 of 253

185



Page 52 of 253

186



Page 53 of 253

187



Page 54 of 253

188



Page 55 of 253

189



Page 56 of 253

190



Page 57 of 253

191



Page 58 of 253

192



Page 59 of 253

193



Page 60 of 253

194



Page 61 of 253

195



Page 62 of 253

196



Page 63 of 253

197



Page 64 of 253

198



Page 65 of 253

199



Page 66 of 253

200



Page 67 of 253

201



Page 68 of 253

202



Page 69 of 253

203



Page 70 of 253

204



Page 71 of 253

205



Page 72 of 253

206



Page 73 of 253

207



Page 74 of 253

208



Page 75 of 253

209



Page 76 of 253

210



Page 77 of 253

211



Page 78 of 253

212



Page 79 of 253

213



Page 80 of 253

214



Page 81 of 253

215



Page 82 of 253

216



Page 83 of 253

217



Page 84 of 253

218



Page 85 of 253

219



Page 86 of 253

220



Page 87 of 253

221



Page 88 of 253

222



Page 89 of 253

223



Page 90 of 253

224



Page 91 of 253

225



Page 92 of 253

226



Page 93 of 253

227



Page 94 of 253

228



Page 95 of 253

229



Page 96 of 253

230



Page 97 of 253

231



Page 98 of 253

232



Page 99 of 253

233



Page 100 of 253

234



Page 101 of 253

235



Page 102 of 253

236



Page 103 of 253

237



Page 104 of 253

238



Page 105 of 253

239



Page 106 of 253

240



Page 107 of 253

241



Page 108 of 253

242



Page 109 of 253

243



Page 110 of 253

244



Page 111 of 253

245



Page 112 of 253

246



Page 113 of 253

247



Page 114 of 253

248



Page 115 of 253

249



Page 116 of 253

250



Page 117 of 253

251



Page 118 of 253

252



Page 119 of 253

253



Page 120 of 253

254



Page 121 of 253

255



Page 122 of 253

256


	01-11 Agenda - Agenda Committee
	01-04 Minutes - Agenda Committee
	Draft 01-26 Agenda - Council
	Draft Item 08 Opposition of New U.S. Base Construction
	Draft Item 09 Public Works Commission Recommendation
	Draft Item 10 Budget Referral to Reinstate Partial Funding
	Draft Item 13 Support Community Refrigerators
	Draft Item 15 Amendments to the Berkeley Election
	Draft Item 16a A People’s First Sanctuary Encampment
	Draft Item 17 Declare Juneteenth as a City Holiday
	Draft Item 18 Confirming Community Appointments
	Draft Item 19 Report for Phase 3 Study to Underground
	Item 05 Upcoming Workshops
	Item 06 Council Referrals
	Item 07 Land Use Calendar
	Item 08 Legistative Body Meetings
	Item 09 Support Affirming the Right to Boycott
	Item 10 Amendments to the Berkeley Election
	Item 11 Relinquishments and grants
	Item 12 Commission Reorganization



